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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Pierce County
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

The results of our audit of the Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma are summarized below
in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements

We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements of the
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the
Housing Authority.

Federal Awards

Internal Control over Major Programs:
e Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of

internal control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

e Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
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We issued an unmodified opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance with requirements
applicable to each of its major federal programs.

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

Identification of Major Federal Programs:

The following programs were selected as major programs in our audit of compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

CEDA No. Program or Cluster Title

14.881 Moving to Work Demonstration Program

14.871 Housing Voucher Cluster — Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
14.258 TCAP — Tax Credit Assistance Program

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $1,916,760.

The Housing Authority qualified as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION Il - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION IIl - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS

None reported.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Pierce County
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Tacoma, Washington

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the Housing
Authority of the City of Tacoma, Pierce County, Washington, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated September 19, 2017.

Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the
Hillside Terrace Phase | LP, Hillside Terrace Phase Il LP, Hillside Terrace 1500 LP, Salishan
One LLC, Salishan Two, LLC, Salishan Three LLC, Salishan Four LLC, Salishan Five LLC,
Salishan Six LLC, 2500 Yakima LLLP, and Renew Tacoma LLLP (the partnerships), as
described in our report on the Housing Authority’s financial statements. This report includes our
consideration of the results of the other auditor’s testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those other
auditors. However, this report, insofar as it relates to the results of the other auditors, is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors. The financial statements of the partnerships were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and accordingly this report does not
include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable
noncompliance associated with these partnerships.
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Housing
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Housing Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Housing Authority's financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Housing Authority’s
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Housing Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an
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audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Housing
Authority’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not
limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens
assess government operations.

A

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 19, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Pierce County
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Tacoma, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM

We have audited the compliance of the Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma, Pierce County,
Washington, with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the Housing Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2016. The Housing Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing Authority’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of

Washington State Auditor's Office Page 9



compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Housing Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Housing
Authority’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Housing Authority’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Housing Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It
also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

A

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 19, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma

Pierce County
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Tacoma, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
aggregate discretely presented component units of the Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma,
Pierce County, Washington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic
financial statements as listed on page 16.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Hillside Terrace Phase | LP, Hillside Terrace Phase
Il LP, Hillside Terrace 1500 LP, Salishan One LLC, Salishan Two, LLC, Salishan Three LLC,
Salishan Four LLC, Salishan Five LLC, Salishan Six LLC, 2500 Yakima LLLP, and Renew
Tacoma LLLP (the partnerships) which represent 92.8%, of the assets and net position, and 100
percent of the revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those statements
were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as
it relates to the amounts included for the partnerships, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the
partnerships were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Housing Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Housing Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
business-type activities and the aggregate discretely presented component units of the Housing
Authority of the City of Tacoma, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Matter of Emphasis

As discussed in Note 2, in 2016 the Tax Credit Partnership MLK New Look, LLC, previously a
discreetly presented component unit, was dissolved and in accordance with GASB 69 its assets,
liabilities and operations were transferred to the Authority, as if the event was effective
January 1, 2016. This resulted in the restatement of certain accounts in the Statement of Net
Position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 17 through 26 and pension plan information on
pages 77 through 80 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). The accompanying Financial Data Schedule and HUD form are supplementary
information required by HUD. These schedules are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
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prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures
performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 19, 2017 on our consideration of the Housing Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

o

Pat McCarthy
State Auditor
Olympia, WA

September 19, 2017
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Pierce County
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis — 2016

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position — 2016

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — 2016
Statement of Cash Flows — 2016

Notes to Financial Statements — 2016

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability — PERS Plan 1 — 2016
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability — PERS Plan 2/3 — 2016
Schedule of Employer Contributions — PERS Plan 1 — 2016

Schedule of Employer Contributions — PERS Plan 2/3 - 2016

SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2016

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards — 2016
Financial Data Schedule — 2016

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate WA19P00550112

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate WA19P00550113

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate WA19P00550114

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate WA19R00550114

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate WA19R00550214

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate WA19P00550115

Actual Modernization Cost Certificate WA19R00550215
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2016

The Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma (Housing Authority) is pleased to offer readers of
the Housing Authority’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the Housing Authority for the year ended December 31, 2016. This Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be read in conjunction with the Housing Authority’s
financial statements and the notes to the financial statements which follow.

The Housing Authority administers a broad range of federally and locally financed housing
programs within the limits of the City of Tacoma. The Housing Authority owns or manages 1,437
units of housing and provides rental subsidies to about 4,000 additional households. The
Housing Authority serves approximately 12,000 persons or about six percent of the City’'s
residents. The majority of the Housing Authority’s program participants have incomes below
30% of the area median income. Most of the people receiving assistance from the Housing
Authority are elderly, disabled or minor children.

The financial performance discussed in the following analyses does not include tax credit
partnerships. The tax credit partnerships, with 20 properties and 1202 units, are owned by
separate limited partnerships/corporations with the Housing Authority in the role of general
partner/managing member. These separate legal entities are not included in the books of the
Housing Authority but are listed as component units in the Housing Authority’s financial
statements and are detailed in portions of the notes to the financial statements (Notes 1, 2, 4, 5,
9, 12 and 13). With those exceptions, neither these units, nor their financial data, are included in
the analyses and financial statements and notes to the financial statements that follow.

Financial Highlights

» In April 2016 the Housing Authority sold off most of its public housing properties to the
Renew Tacoma Housing Limited Liability Limited Partnership (LLLP) as part of the
Housing Authority’s participation in the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD)
program. The Housing Authority is the general partner of this partnership. This sale is
the primary reason for an increase in net position of $34.08 million (39.4%) from the prior
year. The increase in net position was largely due to an increase of cash and notes
receivable derived from that sale.

» The assets and deferred outflows of the Housing Authority exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows at the close of the fiscal year by $120.54 million (net position). Of this
amount $26.71 million is invested in capital assets, net of related debt (net investment in
capital assets); $9.54 million is restricted to meet externally imposed obligations
(restricted net position); and $84.29 million (unrestricted net position) is available to meet
ongoing obligations to residents and creditors.

» The Housing Authority’s total cash balances increased from the previous fiscal year by
$12.96 million (106.0%), primarily due to the sale of the public housing properties to the
Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP, which includes a $4.75 million cash collateral escrow
account used for the ongoing rehabilitation project for these properties. The Housing
Authority’s cash balance was $25.20 million at the end of the fiscal year and of this
amount, $11.68 million was restricted.
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> Notes Receivable from Component Units increased by $58.21 million (126.3%) and
Capital Assets decreased by $12.03 million (20.8%) mostly due to the sale of the nine
public housing properties to the Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP.

> Total current liabilities grew by $1.77 million (67.8%) mostly due to inclusion of $1.78
million of construction payable balances included in the Accounts Payable balance at
year-end for the Bay Terrace Il Apartments (2500 Court G, LLLP), which was paid from
restricted cash in January 2017.

> Total noncurrent liabilities increased by $24.38 million (58.3%) chiefly due to the ongoing
rehabilitation of the nine former public housing properties owned by the Renew Tacoma
Housing LLLP, for which the Housing Authority issued $22.00 million in notes payable
that was reloaned to the Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP.

> Operating revenues grew by $8.45 million (150.0%) in comparison to the prior year
principally due to an increase in developer fees earned by the Housing Authority.

> Operating expenses rose by $2.56 million (5.2%) in comparison to the prior year mostly
due to increases in Housing Assistance Payments. The Housing Authority’s Housing
Assistance Payments have increased due to two factors: 1) Increase in average
apartment rents in the Tacoma area, and 2) Use of Housing Assistance Payments for
the 456 units of the Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP.

> Operating expenses were $51.56 million, which includes $32.22 million (or 62.5% of
operating expenses) in Housing Assistance Payments made to landlords.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Housing Authority’s financial statements consist of three parts — the MD&A (this section),
the basic financial statements and supplementary information. The basic financial statements
are those of a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities and include
government-wide financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all business
type activities are consolidated into a columnar format, presenting totals by category for the
entire Housing Authority. Similar to the methods used in the private sector, the Housing
Authority uses the full accrual basis of accounting.

The Housing Authority’s government-wide financial statements include:

» Statement of Net Position - The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and
capital resources as well as obligations of the Housing Authority. The statement is
presented in the format where assets plus deferred outflows minus liabilities minus
deferred inflows equals Net Position. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of
liquidity, and are classified as Current (generally, those convertible into cash within one
year), and Non-current.

The Statement of Net Position is designed to represent the available liquid (non-capital)
assets, net of liabilities for the Housing Authority. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as useful indicators of the Housing Authority’s financial health.
Net Position is reported in three categories:
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Capital Assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

v' Restricted Net Position: This component of Net Position consists of restricted
assets where constraints have been placed on the asset by creditors (such as
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc., net of any

offsetting, associated liabilities.

v" Unrestricted Net Position: This component of Net Position consists of the Net

Position that does not meet the definitions of Net Investment in Capital Assets or
Restricted Net Position.

» Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - This statement
presents information on how the Housing Authority’s net position changed during the
year. The Housing Authority reports all changes in net position as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
This statement includes operating revenues, such as rental income; operating expenses,
such as administrative expenses, utilities, maintenance expenses, and depreciation; and
non-operating revenue and expenses, such as grant revenue, investment income and
interest expense.

» Statement of Cash Flows — This statement offers information on where cash comes
from, how cash was used and what the change in the cash balance was during the year.
This statement discloses cash provided by, or used for operating, non-capital financing,
capital and related financing, and investing activities during the year. The Housing
Authority uses the direct method to present cash flows, which includes a reconciliation of
cash from operating activities to operating income.

The Housing Authority’s basic financial statements also include notes to the financial statements
that help explain specific information presented in the government-wide financial statements.
Additionally, these notes provide detailed supporting data and explain accounting methods used
to allow a comprehensive understanding of the information presented in the government-wide
financial statements.

In addition to the basic financial statements, the Housing Authority presents a combining HUD-
developed and required Financial Data Schedule (FDS) as Supplementary Information. The
FDS is a reporting format used to disclose to HUD all of the Housing Authority’s financial
activities at the property and program level.

The Housing Authority also presents Schedules of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension
Liability and Schedules of Employer Contributions as Required Supplementary Information used
to disclose 10-year trends of funding of the Housing Authority’s pension obligations.
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Condensed Government-wide Statements and Analysis of Overall Financial Position

The following table! summarizes the Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2016 and
2015 for the Housing Authority.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FY 2016 FY 2015
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 146,658,219 $ 73,045,128
Capital Assets 45,909,414 57,939,891
Total Assets 192,567,633 130,985,019
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 1,327,307 817,683
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,327,307 817,683
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 4,387,275 2,614,220
Noncurrent Liabilities 66,195,474 41,820,335
Total Liabilities 70,582,749 44,434,555
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 171,254 910,028
Deferred Inflows Related to HUD Grants 2,598,495 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,769,749 910,028
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 26,711,196 39,134,469
Restricted 9,539,030 3,778,326
Unrestricted 84,292,216 43,545,324
Total Net Position $ 120,542,442 $ 86,458,119

The Housing Authority’s overall financial position strengthened during the fiscal year. Total net
position increased by $34.08 million (39.4%), primarily due to the sale of nine of the Housing
Authority’s former public housing properties to the Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP.

Current and Other Assets swelled by $73.61 million (100.8%) during the fiscal year primarily
due to a $58.21 million (126.3%) increase in Notes Receivables from Component Units and a
$12.96 million (106.0%) increase in cash. Both of these increases were primarily due to the sale
of the former public housing properties mentioned above.

Capital Assets decreased by $12.03 million (20.8%) largely due to the sale of the former public
housing properties under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program.

Current liabilities rose by $1.77 million (67.8%) predominantly due to the inclusion of $1.78
million of construction payable balances in the Accounts Payable balance at year-end for the
Bay Terrace Il Apartments (2500 Court G, LLLP).

Current assets exceeded current liabilities by $25.40 million for a current ratio of 6.79, which is a
slight improvement from the prior year current ratio of 6.47 and largely the result of the

' For more detailed information please see the Statement of Net Position.
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aforementioned increase in cash in 2016. The current ratio is a measure of the ability to pay
debts as they become due and generally, a current ratio of 1 or less suggests that obligations
may not be paid when they are due.

The following table? summarizes the changes in net position for the FY 2016 and FY 2015 for
the Housing Authority.

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FY 2016 FY 2015
Revenues
Operating Revenue
Tenant Revenue $ 2,838,123 $ 2,948,316
Other Revenue 11,238,341 2,682,777
Non-Operating Revenue
Operating Grants 42,009,323 44,315,278
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 1,232,818 284,705
Investment Income 2,686,717 1,460,109
Total Revenue 60,005,322 51,691,185
Expenses
Operating Expenses
Administrative 10,975,384 9,389,745
Tenant Senvices 1,332,564 1,361,932
Utilities 536,411 734,809
Maintenance & Operations 2,050,019 2,772,530
Housing Assistance Payments 32,224,595 29,348,693
Other Operating Expenses 1,797,736 2,296,897
Depreciation and Amortization 2,641,933 3,094,465
Non-Operating Expenses
Distributions to Other Governments 1,003,720 571,220
Distributions to Component Units 13,535 156,422
Interest 123,230 120,055
Total Expenses 52,699,127 49,846,768
Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Special ltem 7,306,195 1,844,417
Capital Grants and Contributions 7,348,280 1,832,833
Special Iltem 18,359,370 -
Change in Net Position 33,013,845 3,677,250
Change in Accounting Principal - (6,002,416)
Change in Reporting Entity 1,070,478 -
Prior Period Adjustment - 199,690
Net Position - Beginning of Year 86,458,119 88,583,595
Net Position - End of Year $ 120,542,442 $ 86,458,119

The best indicator of the differences between the two fiscal years is the Income (Loss) Before
Contributions and Special Item, which shows an increase of $5.46 million (300.9%). This
change is chiefly attributable to an increase of Other Revenue of $8.56 million (318.9%), offset

2 For more detailed information please see the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position
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by a rise in Housing Assistance Payments of $2.88 million (9.8%). Other Revenues soared
during 2016 due to Developer Fee earnings on two major construction projects: 1) Construction
of the new Bay Terrace |l Apartments (2500 Court G, LLLP) and 2) Rehabilitation of 9 formerly
public housing properties, Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP, under the RAD program as
mentioned above. Housing Assistance Payments enlarged due to an Increase in average
apartment rents in the Tacoma area of over 10% compared to the prior year, and the new use of
Housing Assistance Payments for the 456 units sold by the Housing Authority to Renew
Tacoma Housing LLLP.

Other smaller deviations from the prior year include a $0.95 million (333.0%) increase in Gain
on Sale of Capital Assets caused by the sale of the Housing Authority’s ten bond-financed
scattered sites homes and three of the thirty-four scattered public housing homes during 2016.
Distributions to Other Governments rose by $0.43 million (75.7%) because of the ramping up of
the Housing Authority’s engagement with Pierce County in funding the Homeless Youth
Housing Program and the Rapid Rehousing Program to house homeless youth and families.

Administrative expenses grew by $1.59 million (16.9%) primarily due to increased staffing levels
used to coordinate and execute an agency-wide computer system conversion and complete the
RAD conversion of the Housing Authority’s public housing units.

Revenues are classified as operating, non-operating or capital grant contributions. The following
graph illustrates a comparison of the sources of all revenues for FY 2016 and FY 2015.

Revenue Sources
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Capital and Other Grants increased by $5.39 million (233.7%) principally due to the use of HUD
Capital Fund Program grants as a loan extended to the Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP for the
rehabilitation of the nine public housing properties sold to the entity under the RAD conversion
program. HUD Operating Grants declined by $2.18 million (5.0%) mainly due to a decrease in
MTW Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) revenue received during 2016 compared to 2015 as
the Housing Authority used these revenues in 2015 to pay off the outstanding Capital Fund
Financing Program (CFFP) bonds, purchase the Outrigger Apartments and extend a loan to the
MLK New Look Apartments. Other Income expanded by $9.50 million (320.3%) due to the
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increase in gains on sale of capital assets and the growth in developer fee revenues described
above.

Operating expenses are amounts paid for providing housing to the Housing Authority’s tenants
and administering the various housing and tenant assistance programs. The following graph
shows a comparison of the operating expenses by type for FY 2016 and FY 2015.

Operating Expense Sources
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Total operating expenses for FY 2016 expanded by $2.56 million (5.2%), with the largest area of
increase being the Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) category with $2.88 million (9.8%). The
rise in HAP was due to higher average rents and the RAD conversion of the 9 public housing
properties, as described above. This RAD conversion also resulted in a drop of Maintenance
expenses ($0.72 million or 26.1%), Utilities expenses ($0.20 million or 27.0%), and Depreciation
expenses ($0.45 million or 14.6%). Administration and Other costs increased by $1.09 million
predominantly due to augmented staffing levels, as described above.

Capital Asset and Long-Term Liability Activity

Capital Assets
During FY 2016, the Housing Authority had the following significant changes in capital

assets:

> Land increased by $1.61 million primarily because of the gifting of the MLK New
Look Apartments to the Housing Authority, the purchase of a former KeyBank
building and the placing in service of construction in progress related to the Bay
Terrace Il Apartments.

» Construction-In-Progress decreased by $3.17 million mostly due to 1) work
completed on the Housing Authority’s conversion of its nine public housing properties
to project-based rental assistance under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD)
program and receiving a Notes Receivable for the value of the complete work; and 2)
the placing in service of land and site improvements related to the Bay Terrace |
Apartments.
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> Buildings declined by $34.81 million chiefly due to the sale of the nine public housing
properties to Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP, offset by the gifting of the MLK New
Look Apartments to the Housing Authority.

» Site Improvements diminished by $1.81 million as a result of the sale of the nine
public housing properties offset by the gifting of the MLK New Look Apartments.

> Intangible Assets increased by $0.80 million as the Housing Authority continue to
engage in developing an agency-wide software product based on the Salesforce
platform.

The following table® summarizes the changes in capital assets between FY 2016 and FY
2015 for the Housing Authority.

Schedule of Changes in Capital Asset Balances
2016 2015 Net Change

Land $ 12,780,636 $ 11,173,872 $ 1,606,764
Construction-In-Progress 336,541 3,506,497 (3,169,956)
Buildings 30,989,951 65,801,046 (34,811,095)
Site Improvements 13,766,317 15,571,918 (1,805,601)
Machinery and Equipment 2,870,990 3,439,207 (568,217)
Intangible Assets 1,460,994 657,339 803,655

Totals 62,205,429 100,149,879 (37,944,450)
Accumulated Depreciation (16,296,015) (42,209,988) 25,913,973
Capital Assets, Net $ 45,909,414 $ 57,939,891 $ (12,030,477)

Long-Term Liability Activity

The Housing Authority typically issues various types of debt obligations to finance the
acquisition and construction of assets. During the current fiscal year, the Housing Authority
had the following significant changes in long-term liabilities:

» Outstanding Notes Payable rose by $22.87 million (72.4%) chiefly due to the
issuance of $22.00 million in new notes payable for the rehabilitation of the nine
public housing properties sold. The proceeds of the note were re-loaned to the
Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP and consequently resulted in an equal amount of
notes receivable from this entity. The balance of this construction loan is expected to
be paid off from the contributions of the limited partner and a permanent loan to the
entity after the rehabilitation work has been completed.

3 For more detailed information on Capital Assets please see Note 5 to the Financial Statements
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The following table* summarizes the changes in long-term liabilities (including current
portions) between FY 2016 and FY 2015 for the Housing Authority.

Schedule of Changes of Long-Term Liabilities
2016 2015 Net Change
Revenue Bonds $ 2,586,304 $ 2,641,432 $ (55,128)
Notes Payable 54,451,592 31,580,790 22,870,802
Net Pension Liability 7,078,581 5,971,191 1,107,390
Unearned Rev - Op Lease 966,567 980,834 (14,267)
Other 1,281,618 801,624 479,994
Total long-term liabilities $ 66,364,662 $ 41,975,871 $ 24,388,791

All debt payments for the fiscal year were made as scheduled and on time.

Economic Factors Affecting the Housing Authority

The majority of the Housing Authority’s funding is from HUD in the form of MTW grants
(operating subsidy, capital fund grants and Section 8). This HUD funding is dependent on
congressional appropriations and related budget priorities set.

During 2016 HUD funding for the MTW grants was below 100% of eligibility and is expected to
continue to be underfunded in 2017 due to federal budget cuts. The following funding impacts
were seen in 2016 and are expected for 2017:

» In 2016 HUD funded housing authority operating subsidy at 90.2% of eligibility. For 2017
funding for the operating subsidy is projected to be about 92.9% of eligibility.

» Similarly, the capital fund grants provided to housing authorities by HUD have over the
past 10+ years been insufficient to meet the capital needs of most housing authorities
and no increase in funding level is expected in the coming years.

» The administrative cost portion of the Section 8 funding was funded at 83.9% of eligibility
during 2016 and is expected to be funded about 75.7% of eligibility for 2017.

» The Section 8 HAP funding was funded at 99.6% of eligibility during 2016 and is
expected to be funded about 97.3% of eligibility for 2017.

The Housing Authority has converted the ownership structure on essentially all of its public
housing complexes from Housing Authority owned to ownership by partnerships under the Low
Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program. In 2016 the Housing Authority converted 456
public housing units to project-based Section 8 units under the Rental Assistance
Demonstration program, which also are owned by a partnership under the LIHTC program,
thereby reducing the Housing Authority’s exposure to the low and unpredictable funding levels
of the public housing program. The federal income tax credits awarded to such partnerships
allow the Housing Authority to obtain equity contributions to fund redevelopment and renovation
activities and allow decreasing the dependency on HUD financing.

4 For more details on the Long-Term Liabilities please see Note 9 to the Financial Statements
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Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends can affect resident incomes and
therefore the amount of rental incomes of the Housing Authority, as well as the amount of HAP
paid by the Housing Authority. Average annual unemployment in the Tacoma, Washington area
decreased from 6.8% in 2015 to 6.6% in 2016.5

Over the last three years, the two bedroom 40th percentile rent in Pierce County has increased
over 15 percent, a trend that has had serious impacts on families participating in the Housing
Choice Voucher (HCV) program. Many new voucher holders are unable to find housing and
existing program participants have taken on an increased shelter burden, with voucher holders
now spending more of their income on rent and utilities. To address the increasing rental costs,
payments standards were increased by the Housing Authority effective January 2017. Although
there was concern that the increase in payment standards will not fully address increases in the
private rental market, HUD funding levels have limited the degree to which payment standards
could be raised. While HUD’s Fair Market Rental (FMR) metric for the region increased 16
percent between 2014 and 2016, actual funding has been stagnant.

The Housing Authority has received a 10-year extension from HUD of the Moving-to-Work
contract which will now continue to provide the Housing Authority substantial financial flexibility
to the year 2028.

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors
and creditors with a general overview of the Housing Authority’s finances and to demonstrate
accountability for its resources. Any questions concerning the information presented here
should be addressed to the Finance Director of the Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma.
The Housing Authority’s offices are located at 902 South L Street, Tacoma, WA 98405.

5 U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics — www.bls.gov
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Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2016

Housing Component
Authority Units
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 13,520,580 $ 1,908,642
Investments 1,637,737 -
Receivables (Net)
HUD 24,946 -
Other Governments 110,347 -
Component Units 2,622,561 -
Tenants 31,396 115,039
Other 101,098 455,172
Prepaid Expenses 162,088 308,608
Restricted Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Tenant Security Deposits 73,942 294,404
Replacement & Operating Reserves 625,843 6,290,153
Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) 429,841 -
Capital Projects 10,446,532 4,556,848
Total Current Assets 29,786,911 13,928,866
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted Cash - FSS Escrows 99,521 23,717
Notes Receivable from Component Units 104,286,280 -
Interest Receivable from Component Units 12,238,585 -
Capital Assets
Land 12,780,636 805,823
Construction In Progress 336,541 22,230,381
Buildings 30,989,951 168,222,831
Improvements Other than Buildings 13,766,317 11,187,317
Equipment 2,870,990 3,795,776
Intangible Assets 1,460,994 -
Accumulated Depreciation (16,296,015) (30,762,948)
Total Capital Assets (Net) 45,909,414 175,479,180
Other Receivable from Component Units 246,922 -
Other Assets - 571,761
Total Noncurrent Assets 162,780,722 176,074,658
TOTAL ASSETS $ 192,567,633 $ 190,003,524
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 1,327,307 -
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES $ 1,327,307 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2016

Housing Component
Authority Units
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 2,825,276 $ 5,614,389
Accrued Liabilities 420,611 138,762
Intergovernmental Payables 3,960 -
Payable to Housing Authority - 2,622,561
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 120,570 9,747,170
Compensated Absences 27,671 -
Tenant Security Deposits 74,173 299,680
Unearned Revenue 894,599 34,046
Other Current Liabilities 20,415 1,463,661
Total Current Liabilities 4,387,275 19,920,269
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences 748,820 -
Long-Term Debt 56,917,327 9,075,216
Notes Payable to Housing Authority - 103,753,418
Accrued Interest Payable to Housing Authority - 12,238,585
Other Accrued Interest Payable 398,925 10,868
FSS Escrows 99,521 23,717
Unearned Revenue 952,300 -
Net Pension Liability 7,078,581 -
Other Payable to Housing Authority - 246,922
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 66,195,474 125,348,726
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 70,582,749 $ 145,268,995
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 171,254 -
Deferred Inflows Related to HUD Grants 2,598,495 -
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES $ 2,769,749 $ -
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 26,711,196 50,952,759
Restricted for
Replacement & Operating Reserves 625,843 6,290,153
Housing Assistance Payments 245,844 -
Capital Projects 8,667,343 4,556,848
Unrestricted 84,292,216 (17,065,231)
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 120,542,442 $ 44,734,529

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Housing Component
Authority Units
OPERATING REVENUES
Net Tenant Rental Revenue $ 2,693,747 8,070,181
Tenant Revenue - Other 144,376 318,895
Other Revenue 11,238,341 1,226,528
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 14,076,464 9,615,604
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 10,975,384 2,085,515
Tenant Services 1,332,564 325,072
Utilities 536,411 1,143,594
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations 2,050,019 2,683,066
Housing Assistance Payments 32,224,595 -
Other Operating Expenses 1,797,736 1,476,071
Depreciation and Amortization 2,641,933 4,253,843
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 51,558,642 11,967,161
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) $ (37,482,178) (2,351,557)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
HUD Subsidies and Grant Revenue 41,657,934 -
Other Government Grants 351,389 -
Distributions to Other Governments (1,003,720) -
Distributions to Component Units (13,535) -
Interest and Investment Income 2,686,717 27,059
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets 1,232,818 -
Interest Expense (123,230) (2,992,664)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 44,788,373 (2,965,605)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND
SPECIAL ITEM 7,306,195 (5,317,162)
CAPITAL GRANT CONTRIBUTIONS 7,348,280 -
PARTNER CONTRIBUTIONS - 652,587
SPECIAL ITEM 18,359,370 -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 33,013,845 (4,664,575)
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 86,458,119 50,476,131
CHANGE IN REPORTING ENTITY 1,070,478 (1,077,975)
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE - 948
NET POSITION - BEGINNING RESTATED 87,528,597 49,399,104
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 120,542,442 $ 44,734,529

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers
Housing Assistance Payments
Other Receipts (Payments)
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HUD Operating Grants
Other Government Operating Grants
Distributions to Other Government
Distributions to Component Units
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Grant Contributions
Purchase and Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Issuance of Capital Debt
Principal Payments on Capital Debt
Interest Payments
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Component Unit Loan Repayments
Loans to Component Units
Investment Income - Loans
Investment Income - Other
Purchase of Investments
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AT END OF YEAR

Housing
Authority

$ 2,482,803
(11,045,847)
(3,730,127)
(32,224,595)
11,500,393

(33,017,373)

44,512,198
536,309

(1,003,720)
(13,535)

44,031,252

7,348,280
(1,443,970)
2,260,484
22,721,693
(334,599)

(81,906)

30,469,982

2,147,799

(30,770,632)
54,892
54,004
(7,567)

(28,521,504)

12,962,357
12,233,902

5 25196,259_

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss) $ (37,482,178)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided/(Used):
Depreciation Expense & Amortization 2,641,933
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables (195,343)
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses 70,058
Decrease (Increase) in Deferred Outflows (509,624)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 1,426,139
Increase (Decrease) in Other Payables 663,026
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability 1,107,390
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows (738,774)
Total Adjustments 4,464,805
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (33,017,373)

Non-cash operating, capital and related financing, and investing activity:

a) Excludes $24,640.000 in notes receiveable received for the sale of capital assets to Renew Tacoma
Housing, LLLP.

b) Excludes $2,840,711 in capital assets received for assuming $850,528 in debt and forgiving
$1,160,488 in loan repayments from the former component unit MLK New Look LLC.

c) Excludes $52,068 reduction of notes receivable from Component Units offset with a reduction of notes
payable to lenders by the Housing Authority for loans reloaned and serviced by the Component Units

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma (Housing Authority) have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to proprietary
funds of governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The significant accounting policies are described below.
a. Reporting Entity

The Housing Authority was created on August 16, 1940 as a municipal corporation under the provisions of
the State Housing Authorities Law (RCW 35.82) and the Housing Cooperation Law (RCW 35.83) in
response to the Federal Housing Act of 1937. The Housing Authority is governed by a five member Board
of Commissioners, appointed by the Mayor of the City of Tacoma. Commissioners serve without pay.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered all potential
component units in defining the reporting entity. The Housing Authority is not financially dependent on the
City of Tacoma and is not a component unit of the City. The Housing Authority’s reporting entity consists of
the primary government, as well as its component units, which are legally separate organizations for which
the primary government is financially accountable. The financial statements of the Housing Authority include
both discretely presented and blended component units.

Discretely presented component units

The Housing Authority has twelve component units, which are discretely presented and consolidated into
the “Component Units” column in the financial statements. The Housing Authority is the 0.01% owner and
the general partner/managing member in these twelve component units. The limited partnership/investor
member interests are held by third parties unrelated to the Housing Authority. These component units are
fiscally dependent on the Housing Authority according to the terms of the partnership/operating
agreements. These agreements include a legal obligation for the Housing Authority to fund operating
deficits up to specified limits.

The twelve component units discussed below are included in the Housing Authority’s reporting entity since
they are fiscally dependent on the Housing Authority and the Housing Authority has financial benefits and
potential financial burdens from these entities. These component units do not provide services exclusively
or almost exclusively to the benefit of the Housing Authority. In addition, while there is fiscal dependency,
the Housing Authority is not responsible or expected to repay the debt of these component units.

e Hillside Terrace Phase | Limited Partnership (LP) — A Washington state limited partnership formed
in April 2002 to lease and operate a substantially rehabilitated 21-unit apartment property in
Tacoma, Washington. Rehabilitation was completed October 31, 2003. Pursuant to the Amended
and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership, dated December 18, 2002, the Housing Authority
serves as the General Partner, SLP, Inc. is the Special Limited Partner and MMA Financial
Institutional Tax Credits XXV, LP is the Investor Limited Partner.

o Hillside Terrace Phase Il LP — A Washington state limited partnership formed in April 2002 to lease
and operate a newly constructed 25-unit apartment property located in Tacoma, Washington.
Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership, dated March 4, 2003,
the Housing Authority is the General Partner, SLP, Inc. is the Special Limited Partner and MMA
Financial Housing Investment V, LP is the Investor Limited Partner.
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o Hillside Terrace 1500 LP — A Washington state limited partnership formed in January 2004 to
acquire, construct and operate a 16-unit apartment property known as Hillside Terrace 1500 Block
located in Tacoma, Washington. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Partnership, dated May 5, 2005, the Housing Authority is the General Partner, Alliant Capital, LTD
is the Administrative Limited Partner, and Alliant Tax Credit Partnership 33-A, LTD. is the Investor
Limited Partner.

e Salishan One Limited Liability Company (LLC) — A Washington state limited liability company
formed in April 2003 to acquire, construct, rehabilitate, develop, repair, improve, maintain, operate,
manage, lease, dispose of, and otherwise deal with a 90-unit apartment property located in
Tacoma, Washington. In accordance with the provisions of the Second Amended and Restated
Operating Agreement dated August 28, 2008, the Housing Authority is the Managing Member,
MMA Special Limited Partner, Inc. is the Special Member and Boston Financial Institutional Tax
Credits XXVIII, LP is the Investor Member.

e Salishan Two LLC — A Washington state limited liability company formed in November 2003 to
acquire, construct, rehabilitate, develop, repair, improve, maintain, operate, manage, lease,
dispose of, and otherwise deal with a 90-unit apartment property located in Tacoma, Washington.
Pursuant to the First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement dated
August 25, 2008, the Housing Authority is the Managing Member, MMA Special LP, Inc. is the
Special Member and Boston Financial Institutional Tax Credits XXIX, LP is the Investor Member.

e Salishan Three LLC — A Washington state limited liability company formed in January 2005 to
acquire, construct, develop, repair, improve, maintain, operate, manage, lease, dispose of, and
otherwise deal with a 90-unit apartment property located in Tacoma, Washington. In accordance
with the provisions of the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement dated November 2, 2005,
the Housing Authority is the Managing Member, MMA Special Limited Partner, Inc. is the Special
Member and Boston Financial Institutional Tax Credits XXIX, LP is the Investor Member.

e Salishan Four LLC — A Washington state limited liability company formed in December 2005 to
acquire, construct and operate a 90-unit apartment property located in Tacoma, Washington.
Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement dated March 5, 2008, the Housing
Authority is the Managing Member, RBC Tax Credit Manager II, LLC is the Administrative Special
Member and AHC Salishan, LLC is the Investor Member.

e Salishan Five LLC — A Washington state limited liability company formed in January 2007 to
acquire, construct and operate a 90-unit apartment complex comprised of 46 residential buildings
situated in Tacoma, Washington. In accordance with the provisions of the Amended and Restated
Operating Agreement dated June 1, 2008, the Housing Authority is the Managing Member, RBC
Tax Credit Manager I, LLC is the Administrative Special Member and AHC Salishan II, LLC is the
Investor Member.

e Salishan Six LLC — A Washington state limited liability company formed in December 2007 to
acquire, construct and operate a 90-unit property located in Tacoma, Washington. Pursuant to the
Second Amended and Restated Operating Agreement dated April 1, 2009, the Housing Authority
is the Managing Member, RBC Tax Credit Manager Il, Inc. is the Special Member and RBC
Salishan VI, LLC is the Investor Member.

e 2500 Yakima LLLP — A Washington state limited liability limited partnership formed in September
2011 to acquire, construct, rehabilitate, develop, repair, improve, maintain, operate, manage, lease,
dispose of, and otherwise deal with a 70-unit property known as Bay Terrace Apartments | situated
in Tacoma, Washington. In accordance with the provisions of the First Amended and Restated
Partnership Agreement dated April 3, 2013, the Housing Authority is the General Partner, Wincopin
Circle LLLP is the Withdrawing Partner and Enterprise Housing Partners XXIV Limited Partnership
is the Limited Partner.
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e 2500 Court G, LLLP — A Washington state limited liability limited partnership formed in September
2011 to acquire, construct, rehabilitate, develop, repair, improve, maintain, operate, manage, lease,
dispose of, and otherwise deal with a 74-unit property known as Bay Terrace Apartments Il situated
in Tacoma, Washington. In accordance with the provisions of the First Amended and Restated
Partnership Agreement dated April 19, 2016 the Housing Authority is the General Partner, Tacoma
Housing Development Group is the Withdrawing Limited Partner, RBC-Bay Terrace Il, LLC is the
Limited Partner, and RBC Tax Credit Manager ll, Inc. is the Special Limited Partner.

e Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP — A Washington state limited liability limited partnership formed in
July 2015 to acquire, develop, rehabilitate, lease, maintain and operate nine apartment complexes
with a total of 456 units; the nine apartment complexes are located in Tacoma, Washington. In
accordance with the provisions of the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership
dated April 1, 2016, the Housing Authority is the General Partner, RBC-Tacoma Portfolio, LLC is
the Limited Partner, and RBC Tax Credit Manager Il, Inc. is the Special Limited Partner.

These twelve component units were established to enable participation in the Low Income Housing Tax
Credit program authorized under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code and administered by the
Washington State Housing Finance Commission. The tax credits allocated under this program provided for
a major source of funding for the modernization or new construction of these properties.

All twelve component units have a December 31 year-end. The financial statements of the component units
are audited separately and are presented as of December 31, 2015. Copies of these audited statements
can be obtained by contacting the Housing Authority. Condensed financial information for each of the
component units is provided in Note 12. Although these component units do not follow government
accounting standards, for presentation purposes certain transactions and balances may be reflected
differently in the Housing Authority’s financial statements than in the separately issued statements in order
to conform to the presentation and classifications of the Housing Authority’s statements.

On December 31, 2016 the investor member of the MLK New Look, LLC withdrew from the company and
gifted the MLK New Look apartment complex to the Housing Authority, its special member. In accordance
with GASB Statement 69 (Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations), the
Housing Authority did not report the MLK New Look, LLC as a component unit for the year ended December
31, 2016, but instead treated it as a government merger. See Note 2 for more details.

Blended component unit

The Housing Authority has one component unit, which is blended. Although it is a legally separate 501(c)(3)
non-profit corporation, the Tacoma Housing Development Group (THDG) component unit of the Housing
Authority is reported as if it was part of the Housing Authority. THDG is governed by a four-member board
consisting of officers (Directors and the Executive Director) of the Housing Authority. THDG’s purpose is to
facilitate the functions of the Housing Authority in support and development of safe and affordable low-
income housing. Because the governing body of THDG is appointed by the Housing Authority and THDG'’s
sole purpose is to service and benefit the Housing Authority, its financial statements have been blended
with those of the Housing Authority.

THDG has a December 31 year-end and its financial statements are presented as of December 31, 2016.
The financial statements of this blended component unit are not audited separately.

Condensed combining information for the THDG component unit is provided in Note 12.

b. Basis of Accounting and Presentation

Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund model that is similar to private
business enterprises. The Housing Authority’s financial statements are reported using the economic

resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Capital asset
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purchases are capitalized depreciated over their useful lives and long-term liabilities are accounted for in
the proprietary fund.

The proprietary fund is composed of a number of programs. These programs (both federally and locally
financed housing programs) are designed to provide quality affordable housing opportunities and increase
the self-sufficiency of those housed. The major programs are described as follows:

Low Income Public Housing — The Housing Authority owns, operates and maintains one property
consisting of 31 scattered sites public housing units that are expected to be fully disposed of by the
end of 2017. The Housing Authority also is the General Partner/Managing Member in the twelve
component unit properties listed above consisting of 1,202 units of which 353 are public housing
units. The program offers income-based rent for elderly, disabled and single families who qualify
under the low-income guidelines. Typically residents pay 30% of their adjusted income in rents.
Revenues for the properties consist of rents, other fees collected from tenants and an operating
subsidy received from HUD. The Housing Authority’s operating subsidy is received under an
Annual Contributions Contract to offset the cost of operating the units. HUD also provides funds to
maintain and improve the public housing projects under the Capital Fund Program. Substantially
all additions and improvements to Housing Authority owned land, structures and equipment of
public housing are accomplished through these capital grant funds.

Tenant-Based Housing Choice Vouchers — The Housing Authority provides rental assistance
payments to about 3,400 households who live in private rental housing. Funded by HUD pursuant
to Section 8 of the U.S. Housing Act, this program allows participating families and individuals to
choose their own housing maintained and managed by private landlords and subsidized with the
use of a housing voucher. Generally the participants pay up to 30% of their income towards rent
and the Housing Authority pays the remainder. The Housing Authority targets this program to the
elderly, disabled households and families that are homeless or at the risk of homelessness.

Project-Based Section 8 Housing — Under this program, subsidies are assigned to qualifying
housing units rather than to qualifying individuals or families. The Housing Authority manages the
subsidy payments under the Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy program
for 41 units at Jefferson Apartments owned by Tacoma Rescue Mission, and 30 units at South
Yakima Apartments owned by the Tacoma Metro Development Council. Additionally, the Housing
Authority manages the payments of 279 regular project-based vouchers in its discretely presented
component units (Hillside Terrace, Salishan and Bay Terrace properties), 456 project-based
vouchers in its discretely presented component unit (Renew Tacoma Housing) that converted from
the Low Income Public Housing program to the Project-Based Section 8 Housing program, 90
project-based vouchers in the Housing Authority’s Salishan Seven property and 389 project-based
vouchers in projects owned by various non-profit organizations.

Non-Subsidized Housing — In addition to the above listed subsidized housing programs, the
Housing Authority also develops, owns and operates non-subsidized housing. The Housing
Authority’s current non-subsidized housing portfolio was in part financed using tax-exempt revenue
bonds. State laws governing this type of financing require that fifty percent of the housing be
affordable housing. The Housing Authority owns the 49-unit Outrigger Apartments, the 15-unit
Prairie Oaks Condominium and the 49-unit MLK New Look Apartments that are non-subsidized
housing.

Supportive Services Programs — The Housing Authority serves a wide assortment of people with
special needs such as the homeless, the elderly, the disabled and the mentally ill. The Housing
Authority provides resident-focused programs in its developments and for its voucher holders in
partnership with many local public and private agencies to provide supportive service programs
including job/education training and self-sufficiency programs. These services are funded using
federal, state, local government and private monies.

Moving to Work - The Housing Authority, recognized by HUD as a high-performing housing
authority, was selected to participate in HUD’s Moving to Work (MTW) Demonstration Program
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effective August 23, 2010. The program allows the Housing Authority an exemption from certain
parts of Section 8 and 9 of the Housing Act of 1937, and to reallocate HUD funding received for
public housing and housing choice voucher programs in accordance with the MTW agreement and
annual MTW plans approved by HUD.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments. For
purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Housing Authority considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
This classification includes undeposited receipts, petty cash, cash on deposit in private bank accounts,
money market accounts and cash on deposit with fiscal agents. Cash held for future payment of long-term
liabilities is classified as non-current asset.

d. Investments

The Housing Authority invests excess cash not needed for operations in certificates of deposit, the
Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), or direct obligations of the U.S. Government
pursuant to requirements of Washington State law in Chapter 39.58 RCW and HUD-imposed investment
restrictions. At times, the Housing Authority also maintains investments held by trustees. Investments held
by trustees are restricted for specific uses including capital additions and improvements and debt service.
Investments are reported at fair value with the exception of the LGIP, which is carried at amortized cost.
Fair value is determined based on quoted market prices for the investments. The net increase (decrease)
in the fair value of investments is recognized as a component of investment income. See Note 4.

e. Receivables

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from tenants for rent and other charges, cost
reimbursements due from grantors, and notes and interest receivable from tax-credit partnerships for
development funds loaned to them. Annually, tenant receivable balances are analyzed and the allowance
for doubtful accounts is estimated and adjusted in accordance with historical experience. Other receivable
allowances are established for uncertain collectibles. No allowances existed at December 31, 2016, other
than the allowance for tenant accounts receivable.

f. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid in advance of the period which the expenses benefit. Prepaid
expenses consist primarily of the current portion of insurance premiums, payments in lieu of taxes, annual
software licenses and postage.

g. Restricted Assets

Certain resources (cash deposits, investments and receivables) are classified as restricted assets if their
use for general operating purposes is legally or contractually prohibited and such use limitations are
externally imposed by creditors, funding source agreements or legislation. The assets held in these
accounts are restricted for specific uses, including capital additions and improvements, housing assistance
payments, debt service, Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) escrows, and other special reserve requirements.

h. Capital Assets

Major expenses for capital assets, including capital leases and major repairs that increase useful lives, are
capitalized. Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are accounted for as expenses when incurred.
Capital assets are defined by the Housing Authority as assets with an initial individual cost of at least $5,000
and estimated useful life in excess of 1 year. Capital assets are recorded at cost where the historical cost
is known and at estimated historical cost where no records exist. Donations are recorded at acquisition
value at the time of donation. Capital project costs clearly associated with the acquisition, development and
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construction of a real estate development project, including indirect costs and interest during the period of
construction, are capitalized as a cost of that project.

Management reviews land, structures and equipment for possible impairment to determine if a decline in
service utility is significant and unexpected. If an asset is considered impaired the amount of impairment
loss is determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 42 using either the Restoration Cost Approach,
the Service Units Approach, or the Deflated Depreciated Replacement Cost Approach. Upon retirement or
other disposition of property and equipment the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from the respective accounts and any gains or losses are included in non-operating revenues and
expenses.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method with depreciation commencing in the
acquisition year and using the half-year convention for the first and last year. Depreciable lives for the
capital assets are generally as follows:

Land no depreciation
Construction-In-Progress no depreciation
New Construction & Building Acquisition 25-40 years
Modernization of buildings & structures 15-20 years
Site Improvements 15-20 years
Machinery, Equipment and Furniture 5-7 years
Software (Intangible Assets) 5-10 years

See Note 5 for the capital asset components and balances at December 31, 2016 and activity for the fiscal
year.

i Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Transactions that result in the consumption of net position in one period that are applicable to future periods
are presented as deferred outflows of resources. Transactions that result in an acquisition of net position
that is applicable to future periods are presented as deferred inflows of resources.

j- Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and sick leave.
The Housing Authority records unpaid leave for compensated absences as an expense and liability when
incurred and adjusts the liability and expense at year-end to meet the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences. The liability for compensated absences reported in the
financial statements consists of unused, accumulated vacation balances and vested sick leave balances
adjusted to the maximum amount allowed as a termination payment.

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to 40 days, is payable upon resignation, retirement or death.
Sick leave may be accumulated without limit; however, payouts are limited to 25% of the first 120 days
upon resignation or 50% of the first 120 days upon retirement or death.

k. Unearned Revenue

The Housing Authority has unearned revenue from operating lease payments, operating grant payments,
and tenant rent payments received in advance of the period in which these are considered earned. Under
reimbursement agreements, receipts from grantors are not earned until the related expenditures occur.
These receipts are recorded as unearned revenue, except for amounts recorded as deferred inflows when
the only eligibility requirement not met is the time requirement.

The Housing Authority received operating lease payments from Salishan Senior Housing for the lease of
land and recognizes the lease payments over the lease term while showing the unearned lease payments
as unearned revenue. The operating grant payments were paid by grantors and will be recognized as
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revenue in the following fiscal year when the related qualifying expenditures occur. Unearned tenant rent
payments were received at year-end before they were due.

I Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of all state
sponsored pension plans and additions to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. See
Note 11 for more details.

m. Tax Exemption

The Housing Authority is qualified as a tax-exempt organization under the provisions of Section 115(1) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is reflected in the accompanying
statements. Under state law (RCW 35.82.210) the Housing Authority is exempt from all taxes imposed by
cities, counties, the state or any political subdivision thereof. Pursuant to an agreement with the City of
Tacoma, the Housing Authority makes a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) to reimburse the City for
services provided.

n. Operating Revenues/Expenses

The Housing Authority reports operating revenues as defined for cash flow purposes in GASB Statement
No. 9. Operating revenues result from fees and charges for providing services in connection with the
ongoing operations of providing and developing housing. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
directly incurred in the operation of providing housing and supporting services, including depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses. Operating subsidies and grants are classified as non-operating revenues and are
presented as cash flows from non-capital financing activities in the statement of cash flows. Revenue from
capital grants is classified as capital grant contributions and is presented as cash flow from capital and
related financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

o. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported as assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingencies as
of the date of the financial statements, and the revenue and expenses reported during the reporting period.
Significant estimates and assumptions require the exercise of judgment and are used for, but not limited
to, allowance for doubtful accounts, useful lives for depreciation, lease classifications and contingencies.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

p. New Accounting Standards Adopted

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the following new accounting standards issued by the
GASB became effective and were implemented by the Housing Authority:

e Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective for financial statement
periods beginning after June 15, 2015. This statement did not have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Housing Authority for the year ended December 31, 2016.

o Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, effective for financial
statement periods beginning after June 15, 2015. This statement did not have a material impact on
the financial statements of the Housing Authority for the year ended December 31, 2016.

NOTE 2 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
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a. Change in Reporting Entity

On December 315, 2016 the MLK New Look, LLC transferred its assets, liabilities and operations to the
Housing Authority while receiving no consideration for the donation. The MLK New Look, LLC was in the
prior fiscal year ending December 315!, 2015 reported as a component unit of the Housing Authority and
consists of a 49-unit low-income apartment complex. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 69, the
transfer is considered a government merger and the merger is effective as of January 1, 2016, with all
operations for 2016, assets and liabilities reported by the Housing Authority. Before the merger, as of
December 31, 2015, the MLK New Look, LLC had a note payable and related interest payable to the
Housing Authority, which were eliminated as part of the merger. The note payable consisted of a current
portion of $15,900, a non-current portion of $1,144,588, and a related interest payable of $7,497.

The initial opening balances of the Housing Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources and net position, as of the beginning of the year, were determined on the
basis of the carrying values reported in the separate financial statements of MLK New Look, LLC and the
Housing Authority as of December 31, 2015, as follows:

MLK New Housing Adjustments
Look, LLC Authority Total Debit Credit Total
ASSETS
Current Assets $ 491,607 $ 16,923,182 $ 17,414,789 $ - $ 23,397 $ 17,391,392
Capital Assets 2,840,712 57,939,891 60,780,603 - - 60,780,603
Other Assets - 56,121,946 56,121,946 - 1,144,588 54,977,358
TOTAL ASSETS 3,332,319 130,985,019 134,317,338 - 1,167,985 133,149,353
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions - 817,683 817,683 - - 817,683
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 119,889 2,614,220 2,734,109 15,900 2,718,209
Noncurrent Liabilities 2,134,455 41,820,335 43,954,790 1,144,588 42,810,202
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,254,344 44,434,555 46,688,899 1,160,488 - 45,528,411
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions - 910,028 910,028 910,028
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,199,574 39,134,469 40,334,043 1,160,488 41,494,531
Restricted 432,051 3,778,326 4,210,377 4,210,377
Unrestricted (553,650) 43,545,324 42,991,674 1,167,985 41,823,689
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 1,077,975 $ 86,458,119 $ 87,536,094 $2,328,473 $2,328,473 $ 87,528,597

The difference in current assets and current liability adjustments was caused by the MLK New Look, LLC
not accruing the interest payable of $7,497 on the note payable to the Housing Authority as of December
31, 2015, whereas the Housing Authority accrued the interest receivable from MLK New Look, LLC. This
also resulted in the same difference in the related Change in Reporting Entity reported by the Housing
Authority than that reported by the Discretely Presented Component Units.

b. Change in Accounting Principle

Discretely Presented Component Units

The financial statements of the Discretely Presented Component Units are prepared in accordance with the
standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). Effective January 1, 2016 the
Discretely Presented Component Units adopted the provisions of FASB Accounting Standards Update
2015-03, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, resulting in the retrospective presentation
of all debt issuance costs as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt obligation and
amortization of the debt issuance cost using the effective interest rate method. The effect of retrospective
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application of the accounting change for all Discretely Presented Component Units resulted in an
adjustment to beginning net position of $948.

NOTE 3 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

State laws and certain bond covenants require that the Housing Authority maintain occupancy in housing
projects at specified numbers of low-income families. During the fiscal year, the Housing Authority satisfied
all compliance requirements specified in its bond and loan covenants. There have been no material
violations of finance-related legal or contractual provisions.

NOTE 4 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

a. Deposits

The Housing Authority’s deposits are entirely covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public
Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC), established under Chapter 39.58 of the Revised Code of
Washington. Deposits that are in excess of the FDIC insured amount are secured by collateral through the
Washington State Public Deposit Protection Act, which was adopted in 1969. Under the Washington State
Public Deposit Protection Act, each public depository is required to contribute to a common pool of pledged
securities. In the event of default of one bank, all participating banks in Washington State will collectively
assure that no loss of funds will be suffered by any public treasurer or custodian of public funds.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Housing Authority’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The Housing Authority does not place deposits in accounts that are not insured and/or
not collateralized and consequently is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

b. Investments

The Housing Authority makes all investments pursuant to the requirements of Washington State law
codified in Chapters 39.59 RCW and 35.82.070(6) RCW, HUD and the investment policies adopted. The
Housing Authority only invests in bonds or other obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States, the
Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), or certificates of deposits issued by qualified
banks located in the state of Washington.

The LGIP, an external investment pool, is managed by the State Treasurer’s office and is not registered
with the SEC as an investment company. The LGIP is operated in a manner consistent with Rule 2a-7
money market funds, as regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The LGIP manages a
portfolio of securities that meet the maturity, quality, diversification and liquidity requirements set forth by
the GASB for external investment pools that elect to measure, for financial reporting purposes, investments
at amortized cost. The funds are limited to high quality obligations with regulated maximum and average
maturities to minimize both market and credit risk. Investments are reported on a trade date basis in
accordance with GAAP.

Investments with the LGIP meet the criteria of cash and cash equivalents because these can be liquidated
upon demand. However, the Housing Authority treats these as investments because of their intended long-
term use. The income, gains and losses — net of administration fees — of the LGIP are allocated based upon
the participant’s average daily balance. The fair value of the LGIP investment pool is approximately equal
to the value of the pool shares.

The Housing Authority entered into a Cash Collateral Assignment and Security Agreement in connection
with the rehabilitation of 9 public housing properties containing 456 residential units. Under this
agreement U.S. Bank National Association (NA), acting as the Collateral Agent, agreed to hold
$4,750,000 as escrow agent as repayment guarantee in connection with a $45.0 million note used to fund
the rehabilitation work. Under this agreement U.S. Bank invested the cash collateral in the Federated
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Institutional Tax-Free Cash Trust (FFTXX), Cusip # 608919486, a money market obligations trust
containing high-quality, tax-exempt securities maturing in 7 days or less.

Investments in the FFTXX funds meet the criteria of cash and cash equivalents because these can
liquidated upon demand. For financial statement reporting purposes these are included in restricted cash
and cash equivalents — capital projects.

When required, the Housing Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
Housing Authority’s policy for reducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with HUD authorized
investment instruments and Washington State law which limit investments to low risk investment
instruments. In line with Washington State laws, the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) investment
policy limits the types of securities available for investment to obligations of the U.S. government or its
agencies, obligations of government-sponsored corporations, banker’s acceptances, commercial paper,
deposits with qualified public depositaries, or obligations of the state of Washington or its political
subdivisions. Banker’s acceptances and commercial paper must be rated with the highest short-term credit
rating of any two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSROs) at the time of purchase.
The aggregate total of commercial paper and banker’s acceptances is limited to 35% of the portfolio. As of
December 31, 2016, the LGIP did not have any banker’s acceptances, commercial paper, or municipal
bonds in its portfolio.

Quality Ratings

Investment Type Fair Value AAA AA A Unrated

Washington State Local

Government Investment Pool § 1630170 % - %- 8- § 1630170
FTTXX 4,754,147 4,754,147
Total $ 6,384,317 $ 4754147 $- $- $ 1,630,170

The credit ratings for the FTTXX money market funds were those issued by Standard & Poor’s and Fitch.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, the Housing Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Housing Authority does not have a formal
policy for custodial credit risk. The investments in the Local Government Investment Pool and the FTTXX
money market funds are not exposed to custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
The Housing Authority’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value losses is to engage in investment
practices that limit the maximum maturity of variable rate investments to not greater than two years. All
investments held by the Housing Authority as of December 31, 2016 had maturities less than one year.
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The Housing Authority is currently not exposed to concentration risk, as defined in GASB Statement No.
40, since the investments consist of pooled investments.

c. Discretely Presented Component Unit Deposits

As of December 31, 2016, the discretely presented component units’ carrying amount of deposits was
$13,050,047. These deposits are entirely covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public
Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC), established under Chapter 39.58 of the Revised Code of
Washington. Deposits that are in excess of the FDIC insured amount are secured by collateral through the
Washington State Public Deposit Protection Act, which was adopted in 1969. Under the Washington State
Public Deposit Protection Act, each public depository is required to contribute to a common pool of pledged
securities. In the event of default of one bank, all participating banks in Washington State will collectively
assure that no loss of funds will be suffered by any public treasurer or custodian of public funds.

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the Housing Authority for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows:
Housing Authority

Balance Balance
1/1/2016 Additions Transfers Disposals 12/31/2016
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 11,173,872 $ 1,015,027 $ 709,693 $ (117,956) $ 12,780,636
Construction-In-Progress 3,506,497 449,532  (1,212,436) (2,407,052) 336,541

Total capital assets not being depreciated 14,680,369 1,464,559 (502,743) (2,525,008) 13,117,177

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings 65,801,046 2,742,902 37,934 (37,591,931) 30,989,951
Improvements other than Buildings 15,571,918 75,935 464,809 (2,346,345) 13,766,317
Equipment 3,439,207 18,930 - (587,147) 2,870,990
Intangible Assets 657,339 803,655 - - 1,460,994
Total capital assets being depreciated 85,469,510 3,641,422 502,743 (40,525,423) 49,088,252
Less accumulated depreciation (42,209,988) (2,641,933) - 28,555,906 (16,296,015)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 43,259,522 999,489 502,743 (11,969,517) 32,792,237
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 57,939,801 $ 2,464,048 $ - $ (14,494,525) $ 45,909,414

Preliminary costs incurred for proposed projects are expensed until a project completion becomes feasible.
Costs relating to projects ultimately constructed are capitalized to the project; charges that relate to
abandoned projects are expensed. In 2016 no interest was capitalized.
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Capital asset activity for the Discretely Presented Component Units for the year ended December 31, 2016
was as follows:
Discretely Presented Component Units

Balance Balance
1/1/2016 Additions Transfers Disposals 12/31/2016
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 805,823 $ -3 - $ -3 805,823
Construction-In-Progress 1,428,921 41,960,011  (21,158,551) - 22,230,381
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,234,744 41,960,011 (21,158,551) - 23,036,204
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 118,398,233 30,640,000 19,184,598 - 168,222,831
Improvements other than Buildings 10,011,486 - 1,175,831 - 11,187,317
Equipment 2,985,745 11,909 798,122 - 3,795,776
Total capital assets being depreciated 131,395,464 30,651,909 21,158,551 - 183,205,924
Less accumulated depreciation (26,576,751) (4,186,197) - - (30,762,948)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 104,818,713 26,465,712 21,158,551 - 152,442,976
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 107,053,457 $ 68,425,723 $ - $ - $ 175,479,180

The additions of construction in progress for the discretely presented component units relates to the
construction of the 2500 Court G LLLP property and the rehabilitation work for the Renew Tacoma
Housing, LLLP properties. The additions of buildings is the result of the acquisition of the nine properties
that Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP purchased from the Housing Authority. Transfers of construction-in-
progress to buildings, improvements and equipment is the result of placing the improvements to three of
the nine properties in service for the rehabilitation work completed for Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP.

NOTE 6 — CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction-In-Progress represents expenses to date on projects for which authorizations total $747,985.
Construction-In-Progress consists of the following:

. Expended Required
Project .
Authorization through Committed Future
12/31/2016 Financing
MLK New Look 219,311 142,766 76,545 -
Public Housing Scattered Sites 528,674 360,808 167,866 -

$ 747,985 $§ 503,574 § 244,411 $ -

Public Housing Scattered Sites Placed in Senice (167,033)
Net Construction-In-Progress $ 336,541

NOTE 7 — NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Housing Authority has entered into various loan agreements with its discretely presented component
units during their formation and construction phases. The outstanding principal balances on these loans
are presented in the Notes Receivable from Component Units balance in the financial statements. The
related accrued interest balances are presented in the Interest Receivable from Component Units balance
in the financial statements. Included in the Notes Receivable balance are also Operating Deficit loans that
the Discretely Presented Component Units are unable to pay within one year of the financial statement
date. The balances consist of the following:
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Schedule of Notes Receivable Balances

Noncurrent Current
Description and Terms Rate Notes Notes Interest Total
Receivable  Receivable

Financing Loan to Hillside Terrace |, LLP 0.00% $ 1,893,162 $ -3 - $ 1,893,162
Balance due December 18, 2047

Construction/Permanent (CDBG) Loan to Hillside Terr. |, LLP 0.00% 176,050 - - 176,050
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 1, 2042

Operating Deficit Loan to Hillside Terrace |, LLP 0.00% 299,192 - - 299,192
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 1, 2018

Financing Loan to Hillside Terrace II, LLP 4.94% 442,994 - 339,970 782,964
Interest payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due March 4, 2058

Construction/Permanent (CTED) Loan to Hillside Terr. Il, LLP 3.00% 199,717 3,618 - 203,235
$2,688 Quarterly from 4/1/2005 to 4/1/2044

Operating Deficit Loan to Hillside Terrace Il, LLP 0.00% 106,541 - - 106,541
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 1, 2019

Financing Loan (A) to Hillside Terrace 1500 Block, LLP 4.94% 510,000 - 252,766 762,766
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due May 5, 2060

Financing Loan (B) to Hillside Terrace 1500 Block, LLP 0.50% 452,418 - 21,919 474,337
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due May 5, 2055

Operating Deficit Loan to Hillside Terrace 1500 Block, LLP 0.00% 128,347 - - 128,347
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 1, 2020

Financing Loan (A) to Salishan One, LLC 5.34% 2,381,557 - 1,734,960 4,116,517
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 31, 2059

Financing Loan (B) to Salishan One, LLC 4.00% 750,000 - 358,932 1,108,932
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 31, 2059

Construction/Permanent (AHP) Loan to Salishan One, LLC 0.10% 629,910 - 7,160 637,070
Balance due January 13, 2045

Construction/Permanent (HTF) Loan to Salishan One, LLC 1,419,375 7,500 - 1,426,875
$1,875 Quarterly from 5/31/07 to 2/28/21 0.00%
$14,849 Quarterly from 5/31/21 to 2/28/46 0.50%

Financing Loan (A) to Salishan Two, LLC 5.34% 1,328,845 - 1,410,898 2,739,743

Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 31, 2059

Financing Loan (B) to Salishan Two, LLC 4.00% 400,000 - 191,430 591,430
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due December 31, 2059
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Schedule of Notes Receivable Balances (continued)

Description and Terms

Construction/Permanent (AHP) Loan to Salishan Two, LLC
Balance due January 13, 2045

Construction/Permanent (HTF) Loan to Salishan Two, LLC
$1,875 Quarterly from 10/31/07 to 7/31/21
$14,849 Quarterly from 10/31/21 to 7/31/46

Financing Loan (A) to Salishan Three, LLC
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due November 1, 2060

Construction/Permanent (AHP) Loan to Salishan Three, LLC
Balance due March 31, 2060

Construction/Permanent (HTF) Loan to Salishan Three, LLC
$1,875 Quarterly from 3/31/08 to 12/31/21
$14,849 Quarterly from 3/31/22 to 12/31/46

Financing Loan to Salishan Four, LLC
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due June 30, 2064

Construction/Permanent (HTF) Loan to Salishan Four, LLC
$1,875 Quarterly from 6/30/10 to 3/31/24
$14,849 Quarterly from 6/30/24 to 3/31/49

Construction/Permanent (HOME) Loan to Salishan Four, LLC
No interest or principal due
Balance due June 30, 2049

Construction/Permanent (SHB 2060) Loan to Salishan Four, LLC
No interest or principal due
Balance due June 30, 2049

Financing Loan to Salishan Five, LLC
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due June 30, 2063

Construction/Permanent (HTF) Loan to Salishan Five, LLC
$1,875 Quarterly from 3/31/11 to 12/31/24
$14,849 Quarterly from 3/31/25 to 12/31/49

Construction/Permanent (United Way) Loan to Salishan Five, LLC
No interest or principal due
Balance due June 30, 2063

Construction/Permanent (SHB 2060) Loan to Salishan Five, LLC
No interest or principal due
Balance due June 30, 2063

Operating Deficit Loan to Salishan Five, LLC
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due June 30, 2023

Financing Loan to Salishan Six, LLC
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due October 15, 2065

Construction/Permanent (HTF) Loan to Salishan Six, LLC
$2,500 Quarterly from 6/30/11 to 3/31/25
$19,798 Quarterly from 6/30/25 to 3/31/50
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Rate

0.10%

0.00%
0.50%

4.90%

5.21%

0.00%

0.50%

6.85%

0.00%

0.50%

0.00%

0.00%

5.50%

0.00%

0.50%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

11.85%

3.00%
3.00%

Noncurrent
Notes
Receivable

629,910

1,423,125

3,868,514

629,910

1,425,000

3,270,461

1,441,875

1,000,000

300,000

3,897,823

1,447,500

190,000

213,308

63,000

981,090

1,932,500

Current
Notes
Receivable

7,500

7,500

7,500

7,500

10,000

Interest

7,160

1,540,881

338,523

2,092,821

1,181,713

632,868

425,423

Total

637,070

1,430,625

5,409,395

968,433

1,432,500

5,363,282

1,449,375

1,000,000

300,000

5,079,536

1,455,000

190,000

213,308

63,000

1,613,958

2,367,923
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Schedule of Notes Receivable Balances (continued)

Noncurrent Current
Description and Terms Rate Notes Notes Interest Total
Receivable  Receivable

Construction/Perm (United Way & HOME) Loan to Salishan Six, LLC 510,000 - 221,265 731,265
Payments subject to residual receipts 9.35%
Balance due October 15, 2065

Financing Loan (CFP) to Salishan Six, LLC 404,030 - 193,380 597,410
Payments subject to residual receipts 9.35%
Balance due October 15, 2065

Construction/Perm Loan (MTW) to 2500 Y akima, LLLP 6,260,995 - 127,749 6,388,744
Payments subject to residual receipts 0.75%
Balance due April 3, 2068

Construction/Perm (HTF) Loan to 2500 Y akima, LLLP 2,010,019 - - 2,010,019
$2,513 Quarterly Interest Only from 8/31/14 to 5/31/34 0.50%
$26,418 Quarterly from 8/31/34 to 5/31/54

Construction/Perm (HOME) Loan to 2500 Y akima, LLLP 0.00% 1,065,342 - - 1,065,342
No interest or principal due
Balance due April 2, 2053

Subsidy Reserve Loan to 2500 Yakima, LLLP 532,604 - - 532,604
No interest or principal due 0.00%
Balance due April 3, 2029

Developer Fee Receivable from 2500 Yakima, LLLP 291,690 24,126 - 315,816
No interest or principal due 0.00%
Balance due December 31, 2028

Construction/Perm A Loan to 2500 Court G, LLLP 8.00% 400,000 - 22,444 422,444
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due April 1, 2056

Construction/Perm (CDBG) B Loan to 2500 Court G, LLLP 8.00% 100,000 - 1,124 101,124
Payments subject to residual receipts
Balance due April 1, 2056

Developer Fee Receivable from 2500 Court G, LLLP 140,000 500,000 - 640,000
No interest or principal due 0.00%
Balance due December 31, 2032

Construction Advance to 2500 Court G, LLLP 0.00% - 169,595 - 169,595
No interest due
Balance due 12/31/17

Financing Loan A to Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP 24,640,000 - 907,292 25,547,292
Payments subject to residual receipts
Interest Rate prior to Conversion 5.25%
Interest Rate after Conversion (est. 2019) 4.25%
Balance due 4/1/66

Financing Loan C to Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP 8,500,000 - 312,986 8,812,986
Payments subject to residual receipts
Interest Rate prior to Conversion 5.25%
Interest Rate after Conversion (est. 2019) 4.25%
Balance due 4/1/66

Construction/Perm (Citi) Loan to Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP 22,006,693 - - 22,006,693
Payments subject to residual receipts
Interest Rate prior to Conversion 5.25%
Interest Rate after Conversion (est. 2019) 4.25%
Balance due 4/1/66
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Description and Terms

Schedule of Notes Receivable Balances (continued)

Rate

Developer Fee Receivable from Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP

No interest due
Balance due 12/31/19

Construction Advance to Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP

No interest due
Balance due 12/31/17

TOTALS

0.00%

0.00%

Receivable

Noncurrent

Notes

3,592,783

Receivable

Interest Total

- 4,592,783

- 86,386

$ 104,286,280 $ 1,831,125

$12,323,664 $ 118,441,069

The maturity schedule for the Notes Receivable as of December 31, 2016 follows.

Maturity Schedule for Notes Receivable

Year Ending
December 31
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022 - 2026
2027 - 2031
2032 - 2036
2037 - 2041
2042 - 2046
2047 - 2051
2052 - 2056
2057 - 2061
2062 - 2066
2067 - 2071
Total

NOTE 8 — LEASES

Operating Leases

The Housing Authority is committed as lessor under various land leases.

Principal

$ 1,831,125 $
24,498,198
1,751,784
180,958
97,735
1,333,866
2,035,919
2,033,310
2,333,459
3,579,864
4,448,922
2,280,134
10,311,820
42,606,712
6,793,599

Interest

99,676 $
2,553,988
15,842
15,691
22,462
216,658
240,622
190,597
129,504
114,435
1,513,306
1,704,083
28,370,859
218,973,909
2,534,673

Total

1,930,801
27,052,186
1,767,626
196,649
120,197
1,550,524
2,276,541
2,223,907
2,462,963
3,694,299
5,962,228
3,984,217
38,682,679
261,580,621
9,328,272

$ 106,117,405 $ 256,696,305 $ 362,813,710

1. In 2006 the Housing Authority entered into a land leasing agreement with the Korean Women's
Association (KWA), a non-profit organization. KWA built a HUD-202 Senior Living Facility on the
Housing Authority’s land. The ground lease is for 50 years, with one 25-year extension. At the end
of the lease the property reverts back to the Housing Authority. All of the lease payments ($1 per
year) have been paid in advance.

2. The Housing Authority leases land to each of its discretely presented component units (see Note
1). The ground leases are for periods between 89 and 99 years. At the end of the lease the property
reverts back to the Housing Authority. The annual lease payments are $1 for each of the discretely
presented component units.
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3. In 2009 the Housing Authority entered into a land leasing agreement with Salishan Senior Housing
(SSH), a non-profit organization. SSH built a HUD-202 Senior Living Facility on the Housing
Authority’s land. The ground lease is for 50 years, with one 25-year extension. At the end of the
lease, the property reverts back to the Housing Authority. All of the lease payments totaling
$1,070,000 have been paid in advance. The Housing Authority is recognizing the rent revenue over
the lease term and unearned lease payments are shown as unearned revenue. Unearned rental
revenue as of December 31, 2016, consisted of $952,300 noncurrent unearned revenues and
$14,267 current unearned revenues.

The Housing Authority has as lessee entered into lease agreements for various office equipment. Total cost
for such leases was $138,539 for the year ended December 31, 2016. The commitments under these
leases are as follows:

1. The Housing Authority’s lease agreement for copiers and printers is for annual calendar year
periods and can optionally be extended for one-year periods in January of each year. Consequently
there were no minimum lease payments remaining on this lease agreement for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM DEBT AND LIABILITIES

Long-Term Debt

Housing Authority

a. Revenue Bonds:

The Housing Authority issued revenue bonds to finance the construction, acquisition and/or rehabilitation
of affordable multi-family housing and related infrastructure. The revenue bonds are being repaid by the

Housing Authority’s revenues or other sources, as indicated below.

The revenue bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Purpose / Property Original Date Final Interest Amount
Amount Issued Maturity Rate Outstanding
Outrigger Apartments 2,652,000 10/8/2015 10/31/2025 3.00% R 2,586,304
Total $ 2,652,000 $ 2,586,304

) Rate subject to possible increase 10/8/2022, w hen it w ould be adjusted to the tax-exempt rate of Heritage Bank, NA.

The revenue bonds debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Dieczrr:S::'n:?‘I Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 57,052 $ 77875 $ 134,927
2018 58,814 76,114 134,928
2019 60,628 74,300 134,928
2020 62,293 72,634 134,927
2021 64,419 70,508 134,927

2022 - 2026 2,283,098 251,488 2,534,586
Total $ 2,586,304 $ 622,919 § 3,209,223

The Outrigger Revenue Bond was issued to finance the purchase of the Outrigger Apartments. The
bond is secured by a deed of trust on the Outrigger Apartments, constituting a lien on the real
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property and improvements, as well as an assignment of rents. The Housing Authority has pledged
future property revenues, net of operating costs, to repay the principal and interest on the bond
when due. During the first seven years the interest rate of the bond is fixed at 3.00% and is subject
to adjustment to the then prevalent tax-exempt rate, but not less than 3.00%. Annual principal and
interest payments on the bond are expected to require about 65-70% of Net Operating Income
generated by the property. Principal and interest paid for the current fiscal year were $10,568 and
$11,920 respectively.

There are a number of other limitations and restrictions contained in the bond indentures. The
Housing Authority is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.
b. Notes Payable

The Housing Authority has long-term notes payable secured by capital assets. These notes were used to
acquire, construct and/or rehabilitate capital assets that provide affordable housing.

The Notes Payable outstanding as of December 31, 2016 were:

Purpose / Property Original Date Final Interest Amount

Amount Issued Maturity Rate Outstanding

KeyBank - WA State HFC Loan $ 715,000 3/31/2016  3/31/2024 1.00% $ 715,000
Hillside Terr | - CDBG Loan 176,050 12/18/2002 12/1/2042 0.00% 176,050
Hillside Terr Il - CTED 250,000 2/1/2005 4/1/2044 3.00% 203,235
Hillside Terr 1500 - SHB 2060 316,166 6/17/2004  6/16/2034 0.00% 316,166
Salishan | - Housing Trust Fund 1,600,000 12/23/2004  2/28/2046 0-0.5% 1,426,875
Salishan Il - Housing Trust Fund 1,600,000 12/23/2004  7/31/2046 0-0.5% 1,430,625
Salishan Il - Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 11/2/2005 12/31/2046  0-0.5% 1,432,500
Salishan IV - Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 6/21/2007  3/31/2049 0-0.5% 1,449,375
Salishan IV- HOME Loan 1,000,000 6/28/2007  6/28/2047 0.00% 1,000,000
Salishan IV- SHB 2060 Loan 300,000 6/28/2007 7/1/2037 0.00% 300,000
Salishan V- Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 6/26/2008 12/31/2049 0-0.5% 1,455,000
Salishan V- SHB 2060 Loan 213,308 6/26/2008  6/26/2038 0.00% 213,308
Salishan V- United Way Loan 190,000 6/26/2008  6/26/2048 0.00% 190,000
Salishan VI - Housing Trust Fund 2,000,000 10/15/2008  3/31/2050 0-0.5% 1,942,500
Salishan VI - HOME Loan 500,000 10/15/2008 10/15/2048 0.00% 500,000
Salishan VI - United Way Loan 10,000 10/15/2008 10/15/2048 0.00% 10,000
Salishan VIl - TCAP/ARRA Loan 11,880,335 1/27/2010 1/31/2050 0.00% 11,880,335
Salishan VIl - Housing Trust Fund 2,000,000 1/27/2010  6/30/2051 0-0.5% 1,950,000
Bay Terrace | - HOME Loan 1,065,342 4/3/2013 4/3/2053 0.00% 1,065,342
Bay Terrace | - Housing Trust Fund 2,010,019 4/3/2013  5/31/2054 0.50% 2,010,019
Prairie Oaks - Housing Trust Fund 1,764,647 3/17/2014  12/31/2054 0.67% - 1.0% 1,764,647
Prairie Oaks - HOME Loan 250,000 6/2/2014 6/2/2034 0.00% 250,000
Prairie Oaks - SHB 2163 Loan 283,697 6/2/2014 6/2/2044 0.00% 283,272
Renew Tacoma Housing Constr Loan 45,000,000 4/19/2016 5/1/2049 2.82-4.21% 22,006,693
New Look - HOME Loan 370,650 4/23/2000  4/23/2040 6.39% 370,650
New Look - CDBG Loan 110,000 4/23/2000  4/23/2040 1.00% 110,000
Total $ 77,905,214 $ 54,451,592
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Notes payable debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

DYeiaernl‘EE::n:a Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 63,517 $ 26,420 $ 89,937
2018 74,964 126,629 201,593
2019 75,212 126,381 201,593
2020 75,466 126,128 201,594
2021 120,694 132,794 253,488

2022 - 2026 2,622,759 542,544 3,165,303

2027 - 2031 2,450,503 333,115 2,783,618

2032 - 2036 3,215,054 262,456 3,477,510

2037 - 2041 3,480,173 183,536 3,663,709

2042 - 2046 3,431,127 100,472 3,631,599

2047 - 2051 37,337,396 34,633 37,372,029

2052 - 2056 1,504,727 3,740 1,508,467
Total $ 54451592 § 1,998,848 $ 56,450,440

The KeyBank — WA State Housing Finance Commission loan was issued by the Housing Finance
Commission under the state’s land acquisition program to fund the purchase of the a former
KeyBank building and the parcel of land it was constructed upon. The loan is secured by a deed of
trust on the property. Under the loan agreement the Housing Authority agreed to use the property
for future development in a manner that furthers the goals and objectives of the Housing Assistance
Program or Affordable Housing Program. The loan carries an interest rate of 1%, with all interest
and principal payments deferred until March 31, 2024. The total interest and principal remaining to
be paid on the loan at year-end was $720,362. Interest accrued during the current fiscal year was
$5,362.

The Hillside Terrace | - CDBG loan was issued to the Housing Authority by the Tacoma Community
Redevelopment Authority and re-loaned to the tax credit property (Hillside Terrace |, LP). Debt
service is made directly by the partnership entity and the debt is secured by a deed of trust on the
property of the partnership but this loan remains a contingent liability of the Housing Authority. The
loan is offset with an equivalent amount of notes receivable balance from the tax credit partnership
(see Note 7 above).

The Hillside Terrace Il — CTED loan was issued by the Washington State Department of Commerce
(formerly Department of Community, Trade and Economic Development [CTED]) to the Housing
Authority and re-loaned to the tax credit property (Hillside Terrace 1l, LP). Debt service is made
directly by the partnership entity and the debt is secured by a deed of trust on the property of the
partnership but this loan remains a contingent liability of the Housing Authority. The loan is offset
with an equivalent amount of notes receivable balance from the tax credit partnership (see Note 7
above).

The Hillside Terrace 1500 — SHB 2060 loan was issued by Pierce County to the Housing Authority
and re-loaned to the tax credit property (Hillside Terrace 1500 Block, LP). No interest or principal
payments are due on this loan and it is forgivable after 30 years if the terms and conditions of the
loan agreement are met. The loan remains a contingent liability of the Housing Authority. The loan
is offset with an equivalent amount of notes receivable included in the A Loan balance from the tax
credit partnership (see Note 7 above).

The Salishan | — Salishan VI Housing Trust Fund loans were awarded to the Housing Authority and
re-loaned to the tax credit entities (Salishan One, LLC; Salishan Two, LLC; Salishan Three, LLC;
Salishan Four, LLC; Salishan Five, LLC; and Salishan Six, LLC). Debt service is made directly by
the tax credit entities and the debt is secured by a deed of trust on the property of the tax credit
entities but these loans remain contingent liabilities of the Housing Authority. For the first 2 - 3 years
payments and interest are delayed. For the first 14 years of debt service the loans are subject to a
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0% interest rate and for the remaining 25 years to a 0.5% interest rate. The loans are offset with
an equivalent amount of notes receivable balance from the tax credit entities (see Note 7 above).

The Salishan IV and Salishan VI HOME loans are forgivable loans awarded to the Housing
Authority by the Tacoma Community Redevelopment Authority and re-loaned to the tax credit
entities (Salishan Four, LLC and Salishan Six, LLC). No interest or principal payments are due on
these loans and they are forgivable after 40 years if the terms and conditions of the loan
agreements are met. The loans are secured by a leasehold deed of trust on the tax credit
properties. Until matured or the properties sold, these loans remain a contingent liability of the
Housing Authority. The loans are offset with an equivalent amount of notes receivable balance from
the tax credit entity (see Note 7 above).

The Salishan IV and Salishan V SHB 2060 loans are forgivable loans awarded to the Housing
Authority by Pierce County and re-loaned to the tax credit entities (Salishan Four, LLC and Salishan
Five, LLC). No interest or principal payments are due on these loans and they are forgivable after
30 years if the terms and conditions of the loan agreements are met. The loans are secured by a
leasehold deed of trust on the tax credit properties. Until matured or the properties are sold, these
loans remain a contingent liability of the Housing Authority. The loans are offset with an equivalent
amount of notes receivable balance from the tax credit entity (see Note 7 above).

The Salishan V and Salishan VI United Way loans are forgivable loans awarded to the Housing
Authority by the Tacoma Community Redevelopment Authority and re-loaned to the tax credit
entities (Salishan Five, LLC and Salishan Six, LLC). No interest or principal payments are due on
these loans and they are forgivable after 40 years if the terms and conditions of the loan agreement
are met. The loans are secured by a leasehold deed of trust on the tax credit properties. Until
matured or the properties are sold, these loans remain a contingent liability of the Housing
Authority. The loans are offset with an equivalent amount of notes receivable balance from the tax
credit entity (see Note 7 above).

The Housing Authority was awarded an $11.88 million allocation of Tax Credit Assistance Program
(TCAP) funds from HUD through the Washington State Housing Finance Commission for the
Salishan Seven property, the final portion of the Salishan redevelopment plan. The TCAP monies
were a portion of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) monies and were meant
to fill funding gaps on eligible tax credit projects that were having difficulties finding an equity
investor due to deteriorated market conditions. No interest or principal payments are due on the
TCAP/ARRA loan and the loan is forgiven after 40 years if the terms and conditions of the loan
agreement are met. The loan is secured by a deed of trust on the Salishan Seven property.

In connection with the Salishan Seven property the Housing Authority also entered into a $2.0
million Housing Trust Fund loan agreement with the Washington State Department of Commerce.
For the first 3 years, payments and interest are delayed. For the first 14 years of debt service, the
loan is subject to a 0% interest rate and for the remaining 25 years to a 0.5% interest rate. The total
interest and principal remaining to be paid on the loan is $2,070,991. Principal and interest paid for
the current fiscal year were $12,500 and $0 respectively.

The Housing Authority was awarded a HOME loan by the Tacoma Community Redevelopment
Authority for the Bay Terrace | property which was re-loaned to the tax credit entity (Bay
Terrace/2500 Yakima LLLP). No interest or principal payments are due on this loan until maturity
after 40 years if the terms and conditions of the loan agreement are met. At maturity the entire
principal balance is due. The loan is secured by a leasehold deed of trust on the tax credit property.
Until matured or the property is sold, this loan remains a contingent liability of the Housing Authority.
The loan is offset with an equivalent amount of notes receivable balance from the tax credit entity
(see Note 7 above).

The Housing Authority was awarded the Bay Terrace | Housing Trust Fund loan which was re-

loaned to the tax credit entity (Bay Terrace/2500 Yakima LLLP). Debt service is made directly by
the tax credit entity and the debt is secured by a deed of trust on the property of the tax credit entity
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but this loan remains a contingent liability of the Housing Authority. Payments were delayed until
August 2015 and interest was delayed until August 2014 at which time interest was rolled into
principal until payments commenced. Payments from August 2015 through May 2034 are quarterly
interest only payments for $2,513 and payments from August 2034 through May 2054 are quarterly
for principal and interest for $26,418. The loan is offset with an equivalent amount of notes
receivable balance from the tax credit entity (see Note 7 above).

The Housing Authority was awarded the Prairie Oaks Housing Trust Fund loan and a recoverable
grant totaling $3,921,437, consisting of a $2,156,791 grant portion and a $1,764,646 loan portion,
to help finance the Prairie Oaks Condominium. The terms of the loan require compounding of
interest at the rate of 0.67% beginning January 2015 through December 2021 and at the rate of
1.00% from January 2022 through December 2054. The recoverable grant portion of the award has
no expectation of repayment if the terms and conditions of the contract have been met through the
end of the commitment period in December 2054. The total interest and principal remaining to be
paid on the loan is $2,027,498. Principal and interest paid for the current fiscal year were $0 and
$11,823 respectively.

The Housing Authority was awarded a HOME loan by the Tacoma Community Redevelopment
Authority for the Prairie Oaks property. No interest or principal payments are due on this loan until
maturity after 20 years if the terms and conditions of the loan agreement are met. The loan is
secured by a leasehold deed of trust on the property. After any default under this Note, the Deed
of Trust, Affordability Period, Loan Agreement or Developer Agreement, the Note shall bear interest
at 12%. At maturity or upon sale of the property the entire principal balance is due.

The Housing Authority was awarded a forgivable Pierce County SHB (State House Bill) 2163
Homeless Housing and Assistance Program Capital Project Loan for the Prairie Oaks property. No
interest or principal payments are due on this loan until maturity after 30 years and the loan is
forgivable if the terms and conditions of the loan agreement are met. The loan is secured by a
leasehold deed of trust on the property.

The Renew Tacoma Housing Construction Loan was issued to make a loan to the Housing
Authority’s component unit Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP (Borrower) for financing the
rehabilitation of nine affordable rental housing complexes under the Rental Assistance
Demonstration (RAD) project. The interest of the Housing Authority in the Borrower Loan
Agreement was assigned to Citibank, N.A. as the funder of the Loan. The Loan is secured by a
deed of trust on the nine rental housing complexes, constituting a lien on the real property and
improvements, as well as an assignment of rents, and a Completion and Repayment Guarantee
by the Housing Authority. The Housing Authority has pledged future property revenues, net of
operating costs, to repay the principal and interest on the Loan when due. The interest rate through
October 31, 2018 is fixed at 2.82% and increases to 4.21% thereafter. During the construction
period interest payments are deferred and rolled into the principal balance. The Loan is expected
to be paid down in large part by equity contributions of the limited partner of Renew Tacoma
Housing, LLLP, and a permanent loan to the partnership, once the conditions to conversion to
permanent loan have been met, which include completion of rehabilitation, eligibility for low-income
housing tax credits, and stabilized occupancy. The loan is offset with an equivalent amount of notes
receivable balance from the tax credit partnership (see Note 7 above).

The New Look HOME and CDBG Loans were issued in April 2000 to the former owner of the MLK
New Look apartments, the MLK New Look, LLC to assist in funding the acquisition of the MLK New
Look apartments. As described above (see Note 2), the property was gifted to the Housing
Authority, along with the Housing Authority’s assumption of these Loans that were issued by the
Tacoma Community Redevelopment Authority (TCRA). Under the original loan agreement with
MLK New Look, LLC payments of principal and interest were supposed to commence fifteen (15)
years after the date of the Note evidencing the Loan; however, during negotiations on transfer of
the property to the Housing Authority TCRA agreed to defer any principal and interest payments
until such time that the loans were either entirely forgiven or terms were renegotiated. As of May
2017 there was no revised loan agreement in place for the two loans. The loans are secured by a
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deed of trust on the property. Total interest and principal balances on the loans at year-end was
$764,212 for the HOME loan and $110,000 on the CDBG loan. No interest or principal payments
were made during the year.

The Housing Authority and its component units remained in compliance with all significant
covenants, terms and conditions of the above notes payable.

C. Changes in Long Term Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities for the

Housing Authority:

Bonds Payable

Notes Payable

Net Pension Liability
Unearned Rev- Op Lease
Interest Payable
Compensated Absences
FSS Escrows

Totals

Beginning
Balance
1/1/2016

$ 2,641,432
31,580,790
5,971,191
980,834
376,922
693,661
107,963

Ending Due
Balance Within

12/31/2015 One Year

(65,128) $ 2,586,304 $ 57,052

Additions Reductions
$ - 98

23,202,343 (331,541)
1,107,390 -
- (14,267)
35,728 (7,044)
685,699 (602,869)
103,825 (112,267)

54,451,592 63,517
7,078,581 -
966,567 14,267
405,606 6,681
776,491 27,671
99,521 -

$ 42,352,793 $ 25,134,985 §$ (1,123,116) $ 66,364,662 $ 169,188

d. Arbitrage Compliance

During the fiscal year the Housing Authority was in compliance with all federal Arbitrage Compliance
requirements for all of its debt issuances.

Discretely Presented Component Units

a. Real Estate Mortgages

The Discretely Presented Component Units have long-term loans secured by capital assets. These loans
were used to acquire capital assets that provide affordable housing. They are being repaid from revenues
generated by the properties.

The Real Estate Mortgages outstanding as of December 31, 2016 were:

Purpose / Property

Salishan Il - ARCS
Salishan lll - ARCS
Salishan IV-B of A
Salishan V - Berkadia A
Salishan V - Berkadia B
Salishan VI - WCRA
Bay Terrace | - Chase
Total

Original
Amount
800,000
1,480,000
880,000
1,577,205
654,660
3,236,065
3,525,946

$12,153,876

Date
Issued
12/10/2006
7/20/2007
12/28/2009
8/13/2010
8/13/2010
8/18/2010
4/10/2015

Final
Maturity

1/1/2017
8/1/2017
1/1/2020
9/1/2025
9/1/2020
7/1/2048
4/3/2033

Interest

Rate
6.65%
6.77%
7.10%
6.56%
6.46%
6.25%
4.74%

Mortgage debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Amount
Outstanding
9,095
132,683
346,009
1,489,250
299,412
3,033,785
3,435,317

$ 8,745,551
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Year Ending
December 31

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022 - 2026
2027 - 2031
2032 - 2036
2037 - 2041
2042 - 2046
2047 - 2051

Total

b. Notes Payable

Principal Interest Total
$ 424551 § 491927 § 916,478
301,320 469,939 771,259
321,108 450,151 771,259
211,261 433,559 644,820
135,050 422,935 557,985
2,041,309 1,886,814 3,928,123
856,818 1,356,766 2,213,584
2,644,300 775,792 3,420,092
628,203 474,142 1,102,345
857,956 244,389 1,102,345
323,675 16,721 340,396
$ 8,745,551 $7,023,135 $ 15,768,686

The Discretely Presented Component Units have long-term notes payable secured by capital assets. These
notes were used to acquire capital assets that provide affordable housing and are mostly included in the
notes payable balances to the Housing Authority (see the Housing Authority’s Notes Receivable described

in Note 7 above).
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The Notes Payable outstanding as of December 31, 2016 were:

P Original Date Final Interest Amount
urpose / Property i N
Amount Issued Maturity Rate Outstanding
Hillside Terrace | - THA $ 2,542,167 12/18/2002 12/18/2047 0.00% $ 2,069,212
Hillside Terrace Il - THA 2,039,154  2/19/2004  3/4/2058 4.94% 442,994
Hillside Terrace Il - CTED 250,000 4/1/2003  4/1/2044 3.00% 203,235
Hillside 1500 Block - THAALoan 510,000 5/5/2005  5/5/2060 4.94% 510,000
Hillside 1500 Block - THAB Loan 452,418 5/5/2005  5/5/2055 0.50% 452,418
Salishan | - Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 12/23/2004 2/28/2046 0-0.50% 1,426,875
Salishan | - AHP (THA) 629,910 1/13/2005 1/13/2045 0.10% 629,910
Salishan |- THAALoan 2,501,137  1/13/2005 12/31/2059 5.34% 2,381,557
Salishan |- THAB Loan 750,000 1/13/2005 12/31/2059 4.00% 750,000
Salishan Il - Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 12/23/2004 7/31/2046 0-0.50% 1,430,625
Salishan Il - AHP (THA) 629,910 1/13/2005 1/13/2045 0.10% 629,910
Salishan Il - THAALoan 1,659,168  1/13/2005 12/31/2059 5.34% 1,328,845
Salishan Il - THAB Loan 400,000 1/13/2005 12/31/2059 4.00% 400,000
Salishan Ill - Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 11/2/2005 12/31/2046 0-0.50% 1,432,500
Salishan Ill - AHP (THA) 629,910 11/2/2005 11/1/2060 5.21% 629,910
Salishan Il - THAALoan 3,868,514  11/2/2005 11/1/2060 4.90% 3,868,514
Salishan IV - Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 6/21/2007 3/31/2049 0-0.50% 1,449,375
Salishan IV- THAALoan 3,270,462 6/28/2007 6/30/2064 4.90% 3,270,461
Salishan IV- HOME (TCRA) 1,000,000 6/28/2007 6/30/2049 0.00% 1,000,000
Salishan IV - SHB2060 (Pierce Co.) 300,000 6/28/2007 6/30/2049 0.00% 300,000
Salishan V- Housing Trust Fund 1,500,000 6/26/2008 12/31/2049 0-0.50% 1,455,000
Salishan V- THAALoan 4,058,166  6/26/2008 6/30/2063 5.50% 3,897,823
Salishan V- SHB2060 (Pierce Co.) 213,308 6/26/2008 6/30/2063 0.00% 213,308
Salishan V - United Way (TCRA) 190,000 6/26/2008 6/30/2063 0.00% 190,000
Salishan VI - Housing Trust Fund 2,000,000 10/15/2008 12/31/2049 0-0.50% 1,942,500
Salishan VI- THAALoan 1,185,221 10/15/2008 10/15/2065 6.30% 981,090
Salishan VI - THAB Loan 1,018,278 10/15/2008 10/15/2065 6.30% 914,030
Bay Terrace | - HOME (TCRA) 1,065,342 4/3/2013 4/3/2053 0.00% 1,065,342
Bay Terrace | - Housing Trust Fund 2,010,019 4/3/2013 5/31/2054 0.50% 2,010,019
Bay Terrace | - THAALoan 6,344,486 4/3/2013 4/3/2068 0.75% 6,260,995
Bay Terrace | - THA Subsidy Reserve Loan 532,604 1/20/2015 4/3/2068 0.00% 532,604
Bay Terrace Il - THA Construction Advance 169,595 12/31/2016 12/31/2017 0.00% 169,595
Bay Terrace Il - THAALoan 400,000 4/19/2016 4/1/2056 8.00% 400,000
Bay Terrace Il - THAB Loan (CDBG) 100,000 4/19/2016 4/1/2056 8.00% 100,000
Bay Terrace Il - HOME (TCRA) 1,000,000 4/19/2017 5/1/2071 2.00% 950,000
Bay Terrace Il - Chase Construction Loan 18,499,439 4/19/2016 10/19/2018 LIBO+2.50% 9,322,930
Renew Tacoma Housing - THA Constr Adv 86,386 12/31/2016 12/31/2017 0.00% 86,386
Renew Tacoma Housing - THAALoan 24,640,000 4/1/2016 4/1/2066 4.25%-5.25% 24,640,000
Renew Tacoma Housing - THAB Loan 6,000,000 4/1/2016 4/1/2066 4.25%-5.25% -
Renew Tacoma Housing - THAC Loan 8,500,000 4/1/2016 4/1/2066 4.25%-5.25% 8,500,000
Renew Tacoma Housing - Citibank Constr L 45,000,000 4/19/2016 11/30/2018 2.82% 22,006,693
Total $ 151,845,594 $ 110,244,656
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Notes payable debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

DYei:aerr:lr)l::n:’a Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 9629929 § 99676 $ 9,729,605
2018 22,059,007 2,584,554 24,643,561
2019 58,425 40,443 98,868
2020 64,244 34,624 98,868
2021 109,653 41,110 150,763

2022 - 2026 1,334,077 306,277 1,640,354

2027 - 2031 1,814,021 323,660 2,137,681

2032 - 2036 2,110,328 266,409 2,376,737

2037 - 2041 2,418,544 197,249 2,615,793

2042 - 2046 3,673,807 173,321 3,847,128

2047 - 2051 4,552,646 1,562,411 6,115,057

2052 - 2056 2,394,640 1,742,406 4,137,046

2057 - 2061 10,438,275 28,397,235 38,835,510

2062 - 2066 42,746,334 218,987,117 261,733,451

2067 - 2071 6,840,726 2,535,966 9,376,692
Total $ 110,244,656 $ 257,292,458 $ 367,537,114

C. Operating Loans and Developer Agreements

The Housing Authority is responsible for covering operating shortfalls of the Discretely Presented
Component Units to the limited extent outlined in the partnership and operating agreements it entered into
with its Component Unit partners. The Discretely Presented Component Units are required to repay the
Housing Authority as excess cash becomes available or at the end of the partnership.

The operating loans and developer fees outstanding as of December 31, 2016 were:

Purpose / Property Original Date Flna! Interest Amoun_t
Amount Issued Maturity Rate Outstanding
Hillside Terrace | - Operating DeficitLoan THA ~ $ 299,192  12/31/2010 12/31/2017 0.00% $ 299,192
Hillside Terrace Il - Operating Deficit Loan THA 106,541  12/31/2011 12/31/2018 0.00% 106,541
Hillside 1500 Block - Operating Deficit Loan THA 128,347 12/31/2008 12/31/2020 0.00% 128,347
Salishan V- Operating Deficit Loan THA 63,000 12/31/2015 12/31/2023 0.00% 63,000
Bay Terrace | - Developer Fee THA 2,078,243 4/3/2013 12/31/2028 0.00% 315,816
Bay Terrace Il - Developer Fee THA 1,600,000 4/1/2016 12/31/2032 0.00%-8.00% 640,000
Renew Tacoma Hsg - Developer Fee THA 10,000,000 4/1/2016 12/31/2033 0.00% 4,592,783
Total $14,275,323 $ 6,145,679
Operating loans and developer fees debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Year Ending L
December 31 Principal Interest Total
2017 $1524,126 $ - $ 1,524,126
2018 2,439,192 - 2,439,192
2019 1,699,324 - 1,699,324
2020 128,347 - 128,347
2021 - - -
2022 - 2026 63,000 - 63,000
2027 - 2031 291,690 - 291,690
Total $6,145679 § - $ 6,145,679
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d. Changes in Long Term Liabilities

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities for the
Discretely Presented Component Units:

Beginning Ending Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Within
1/1/2015 12/31/2015 One Year
Notes Payable to THA $ 46,710,530 $ 55,733,079 $ (2,471,882) $ 99,971,727 $ 306,999
Debt Issuance Costs " (289,507) (252,992) 9,637 (532,862) -
Notes Payable to THA, Net 46,421,023 55,480,087 (2,462,245) 99,438,865 306,999
Operating Loans Payable to THA 1,012,816 5,310,336 (177,474) 6,145,678 1,524,126
Interest on Notes Payable to THA 9,738,347 2,632,712 (47,395) 12,323,664 85,079
Prtnrshp Mgmt Fees to THA 251,103 147,341 (139,339) 259,105 12,183
Total Payable to THA 57,423,289 63,570,476 (2,826,453) 118,167,312 1,928,387
Notes Payable to Others 480,650 10,272,930 (480,650) 10,272,930 9,322,930
Interest Payable to Others 369,879 10,868 (369,879) 10,868 -
Mortgages Payable 9,409,734 - (664,183) 8,745,551 424,551
Debt Issuance Costs " (218,850) - 22,755 (196,095) (311)
Mortgages Payable, Net 9,190,884 - (641,428) 8,549,456 424,240
FSS Escrows 10,306 17,661 (4,250) 23,717 -
Total $ 67,475,008 $ 73,871,935 $ (4,322,660) $ 137,024,283 $ 11,675,557

" Balance reflected Net of Debt Issuance Costs in financial statements prepared in accordance with FASB (ASU 2015-03)

NOTE 10 — CONDUIT DEBT

The Housing Authority is authorized to facilitate the issuance of tax-exempt non-recourse revenue bonds
to finance housing projects. Conduit revenue bonds issued by the Housing Authority are payable from
revenues derived as a result of the property activities funded by the revenue bonds and are secured by
deeds of trust on the underlying properties. The bonds are neither a liability nor contingent liability of the
Housing Authority nor a lien on any of its properties or revenues other than for the property for which they
are issued. The outstanding revenue bonds are not recorded in the Housing Authority’s financial
statements, as they represent conduit debt obligations under GASB Interpretation No. 2.

The Housing Authority has participated in the following conduit debt transactions:

Name of Non-Governmental Proiect Description Date of Original Outstanding
Entity ) P Issuance Issue Amount Balance

South Hill Associates (2001) Ltd To constructa 279-unit apartment
Partnership complex known as Sunset Village 17-May-01  $13,250,000 $ 13,250,000
for low-income elderly tenants

Metropolitan Development 40-unit project serving low-income
Council - Parkland Family Vista, families known as Parkland 14-Dec-05 3,400,000 874,033
LLC Apartments

NOTE 11 — PENSION PLANS

The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans subject to the requirements of
GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions for the year 2016:
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Aggregate Pension Amounts - All Plans

Pension liabilities $ 7,078,581
Pension assets -
Deferred outflows of resources 1,327,307
Deferred inflows of resources 171,254
Pension expense/expenditures 721,264

State Sponsored Pension Plans

Substantially all Housing Authority full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems, under cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution
retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes and amends laws pertaining to the creation and
administration of all public retirement systems.

The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State
of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be
obtained by writing to:

Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit

P.O. Box 48380

Olympia, WA 98540-8380

Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals, and
Superior courts; employees of legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of local
governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher education retirement programs.
PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS plans 1 and 2 are
defined benefit plans and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.

PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as two
percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The AFC
is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible for retirement
from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service,
or at age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65
may receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice
of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. The
plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.

Contributions

The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts
Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates (expressed as a
percentage of covered payroll) for 2016 were as follows:
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PERS Plan 1 Actual Contribution Rates
Employer Employee

PERS Plan 1 6.23% 6.00%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.77% 6.00%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 11.18% 6.00%

The Housing Authority’s actual contributions to the plan were $371,918 for the year ended December 31,
2016.

PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for
Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member’'s 60 highest-paid
consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for retirement
with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an
early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of
age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according
to age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit
and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:

e With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or
e With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-
to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a
reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those
who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are
also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include
duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three
percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members
are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service
if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44.

PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and investment
earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon joining
membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As established by statute, Plan
3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15 percent with a
choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits. PERS Plan 3
members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.

Contributions

The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates include
a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18
percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and employee
contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed
as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2016 were as follows:
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PERS Plan 2/3 Actual Contribution Rates

Employer 2/3 Employee 2 Employee 3

PERS Plan 2/3 6.23% 6.12% 5-15%
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 477%
Administrative Fee 0.18%

Total 11.18% 6.12% 5-15%

The Housing Authority’s actual contributions to the plan were $466,678 for the year ended December 31,
2016.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial
valuation completed in 2016 with a valuation date of June 30, 2015. The actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s (OSA) 2007-2012 Experience Study.

Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2015 actuarial
valuation report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement
date of June 30, 2016. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2015, to June 30, 2016, reflecting
each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit payments.

¢ Inflation: 3% total economic inflation; 3.75% salary inflation

o Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.75% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.

¢ Investment rate of return: 7.5%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled
Table, published by the Society of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table and recognized
future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality
rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is assumed to receive additional mortality
improvements in each future year throughout his or her lifetime.

There were minor changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.

e For all systems the assumed valuation interest rate was lowered from 7.8% to 7.7%. Assumed
administrative factors were updated.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.5 percent.

To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.7 percent long-term discount rate
to determine funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate requirements. Consistent with the long-
term expected rate of return, a 7.5 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets was assumed
for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue being made at
contractually required rates (including PERS 2/3 employers, whose rates include a component for the PERS
1 plan liabilities). Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return of 7.5 percent was used to determine the total liability.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
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The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.5 percent was determined
using a building-block-method. The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB) used a best estimate of
expected future rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, including
inflation) to develop each major asset class. Those expected returns make up one component of WSIB’s
capital market assumptions. The WSIB uses the capital market assumptions and their target asset
allocation to simulate future investment returns at various future times. The long-term expected rate of
return of 7.5 percent approximately equals the median of the simulated investment returns over a 50-year
time horizon.

Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2016, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component
used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad
economic inflation.

%Long-Term

Asset Class AI-Ir:;g;;n Expencted Real Rate of
Return Arithmetic
Fixed Income 20% 1.70%
Tangible Assets 5% 4.40%
Real Estate 15% 5.80%
Global Equity 37% 6.60%
Private Equity 23% 9.60%
100%

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

The table below presents the Housing Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the Housing Authority’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.5
percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate.

Pension Plan 1% Decrease Current Discount 1%Increase
(6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%)

PERS 1 $ 3,953,814 § 3,278,726 $ 2,697,772

PERS 2/3 $ 6,996,216 $ 3,799,855 § (1,978,044)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued DRS financial report.

Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the Housing Authority reported a total pension liability of $7,078,581 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liabilities as follows:

Pension Plan Liability (or Asset)
PERS 1 $ 3,278,726
PERS 2/3 3,799,855

TOTAL $ 7,078,581
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At June 30, the Housing Authority’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability was as follows:

Proportionate = Proportionate
Share 6/30/15 Share 6/30/16
PERS 1 0.061609% 0.061051%
PERS 2/3 0.076922% 0.075470%

Pension Plan

Change in

Proportion
-0.000558%
-0.001452%

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30
are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension

amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations for all plans.

The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the actuarial valuation
date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2015, with update procedures

used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date.

Pension Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Housing Authority recognized pension expense as follows:

Pension Plan Pension Expense

PERS 1 $ 146,836
PERS 2/3 574,428
TOTAL $ 721,264

Deferred Outflows of Resource and Deferred Inflows of Resources

At December 31, 2016 the Housing Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

PERS 1 of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ -
Net difference between projected and actual 82553 )
investment earnings on pension plan investments ’
Changes of assumptions - -
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions i i
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 191,896 -

TOTAL $ 274449 § -

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

PERS 2 of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 202,340 $ 125,439
Net difference between projected and actual 464993 )
investment earnings on pension plan investments ’
Changes of assumptions 39,275 -
Chaqge; in proportion an.d differences betwegn . 103,478 45815
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 242,772 -

TOTAL $ 1,052,858 $ 171,254

Washington State Auditor's Office

Page 62



Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Housing Authority’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended

December 31 PERS 1 PERS 2
2016 $ (20,326) $ 31,425
2017 (20,326) 31,425
2018 75,815 358,467
2019 47,390 217,515
2020 - -
Thereafter - -
TOTAL $ 82,553 §$ 638,832

NOTE 12 — COMPONENT UNITS

Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented component units of the Housing Authority were formed to take advantage of the
Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program authorized under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue
Code. This program allows investors certain tax incentives for investing in low-income housing and to
deduct any losses passed through to them from the partnerships. The tax code requires that the buildings
continue to serve the targeted low-income population for 15 years. The Housing Authority has the option to
purchase these properties at the expiration of this compliance period.

The Hillside Terrace (Phase |, Phase I, and 1500 Block) Limited Liability Partnerships were formed as
limited partnerships with the Housing Authority serving as general partner. These partnerships provide
housing for low-income families, seniors and disabled individuals. As general partner the Housing Authority
complies with the duties and responsibilities established with each limited partner in the related partnership
agreement. In general the Housing Authority is obligated to provide funds to each partnership for operating
deficits and is to be repaid from property cash flow in subsequent years or from proceeds of a sale or
refinance of the property.

The Salishan (One, Two, Three, Four, Five, and Six) Limited Liability Companies (LLCs) were formed to
acquire, construct, develop and otherwise deal with 90-unit apartment properties (one 90-unit property for
each company), with the Housing Authority serving as managing member. These properties provide
housing for low-income families, seniors and disabled individuals. The Housing Authority is obligated to
provide funds to each of the LLCs for operating deficits and is to be repaid from property cash flow in
subsequent years or from proceeds of a sale or refinance of the property.

The 2500 Yakima Limited Liability Limited Partnership (Bay Terrace Apartments I) was formed with the
Housing Authority serving as general partner. The 70-unit property provides housing for low-income
families, seniors and disabled individuals. As general partner the Housing Authority complies with the duties
and responsibilities established with the limited partner in the related partnership agreement. In general the
Housing Authority is obligated to provide funds to the partnership for operating deficits and is repaid from
property cash flow in subsequent years or from proceeds of a sale or refinance of the property.

The 2500 Court G Limited Liability Limited Partnership (Bay Terrace Apartments Il) was formed with the
Housing Authority serving as general partner. The 74-unit property will provide housing for low-income
families, seniors and disabled individuals. As general partner the Housing Authority complies with the duties
and responsibilities established with the limited partner in the related partnership agreement. In general the
Housing Authority is obligated to provide funds to the partnership for operating deficits and is repaid from
property cash flow in subsequent years or from proceeds of a sale or refinance of the property.
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The Renew Tacoma Housing Limited Liability Limited Partnership was formed with the Housing Authority
serving as general partner. The partnership was formed to acquire, develop, rehabilitate, lease, maintain
and operate 9 properties containing 456 units that provide housing for low-income families, seniors and
disabled individuals. The properties were formerly owned by the Housing Authority and contained public
housing units that were converted to project-based Section 8 units under the Rental Assistance
Demonstration (RAD) program. As general partner the Housing Authority conforms to the duties and
responsibilities established by agreement with the limited partner in the partnership agreement. The
Housing Authority is required to provide funds to the partnership for operating deficits and is repaid from

property cash flow in subsequent years or from proceeds of a sale or refinance of the properties.

The Housing Authority usually earns a developer fee for its role in bringing the tax credit property to
completion. Developer fees are primarily paid by tax credit investor contributions, development financing

and available cash flows. Under the various partnership agreements, any outstanding developer fees are

required to be paid within 15 years of the placed-in-service date of the property. The Housing Authority’s
Operating Revenues for 2016 included $7,232,783 in developer fees included in Other Revenue.

Under management agreements with the discretely presented component units the Housing Authority
acts as managing agent for the operations of the properties. Under these management agreements the
Housing Authority is reimbursed for payroll expenses incurred to operate and maintain these properties,
which is recognized as operating revenue. The Housing Authority’s Operating Revenues for 2016
included in Other Revenue $2,028,463 in payroll reimbursements from the discretely presented

component units.

The tax credit properties also are required to pay management fees to the Housing Authority for the
management services provided. During the fiscal year the Housing Authority received or accrued the

following management fees from its discretely presented component units:

Tax Credit Project

Bay Terrace |
Hillside Terrace |
Hillside Terrace |l
Hillside Terrace 1500
Renew Tacoma Housing
Salishan One
Salishan Two
Salishan Three
Salishan Four
Salishan Five
Salishan Six

Total

Management Co/Prtnrshi
Fges Mgmt Feesp Total

$ 45,978 $ 11,670 $ 57,648
8,540 5,000 13,540
11,392 5,000 16,392
8,045 12,154 20,199
178,508 - 178,508
54,550 - 54,550
54,737 - 54,737
45,055 - 45,055
60,091 13,168 73,259
63,970 12,723 76,693
65,038 12,293 77,331
$ 595,904 $ 72,008 $ 667,912
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Financial information is provided for each of the Housing Authority’s Discretely Presented Component Units

in the following condensed financial statements:

Hillside Hillside Hillside o |ishan
Terrace | Terrace Il Terrace One
1500 Block
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
Assets
Current Assets $ 108,125 $§ 92,852 $§ 106,935 $ 71,043
Restricted Assets 300,186 201,939 226,002 740,618
Capital Assets 1,657,455 1,719,163 1,823,583 10,282,676
Other Assets - 3,902 5,690 34,187
Total Assets 2,065,766 2,017,856 2,162,210 11,128,524
Liabilities
Current Liabilties 82,124 27,713 5,999 61,848
Current Due to Housing Authority 8,962 12,368 50,625 117,850
Noncurrent Due to Housing Authority 2,266,747 1,122,545 1,405,655 7,251,894
Other Noncurrent Liabilities - - - 3,821
Total Liabilities 2,357,833 1,162,626 1,462,279 7,435,413
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets (310,100) 1,072,934 901,318 5,124,334
Restricted 294,885 194,937 221,785 709,064
Unrestricted (276,852) (412,641) (423,172) (2,140,287)

Total Net Position $ (292,067) $ 855,230 $ 699,931 $ 3,693,111

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating Income (Loss)

Tenant Revenues $ 61517 $ 156,042 $ 138,440 $ 678,116
Other Revenues 58,080 31,837 15,676 131,167
Depreciation Expense (76,974) (86,373) (69,293) (391,190)
Other Operating Expenses (153,296) (175,062) (159,912) (656,715)
Total Operating Income (Loss) (110,673) (73,556) (75,089) (238,622)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Investment Income 1,109 920 1,043 2,132

Interest Expense (3,202) (28,067) (28,503) (161,031)
Capital Contributions/(Distributions) - - - -
Change in Net Position (112,766) (100,703) (102,549) (397,521)
Net Position - Beginning of Year (179,301) 955,933 802,480 4,087,582

Prior Period Adjustment - - - 3,050

Net Position - Beginning Restated (179,301) 955,933 802,480 4,090,632

Net Position - End of Year

(292,067) $ 855,230

$ 699,931

$ 3,693,111
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Salishan Salishan Salishan Salishan
Two Three Four Five

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Assets
Current Assets $ 93,153 $ 491,352 $ 287,898 $ 98,727
Restricted Assets 731,353 816,493 749,114 685,985
Capital Assets 10,301,909 12,490,782 13,979,970 14,106,577
Other Assets 38,785 46,184 65,994 105,467
Total Assets 11,165,200 13,844,811 15,082,976 14,996,756
Liabilities
Current Liabilties 60,189 254,852 159,634 191,603
Current Due to Housing Authority 70,485 36,719 53,490 94,280
Noncurrent Due to Housing Authority 5,389,120 7,772,828 8,114,819 7,052,799
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 1,700 1,201 241,422 1,613,856
Total Liabilities 5,521,494 8,065,600 8,569,365 8,952,538

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,503,434 6,457,485 7,624,211 6,647,918
Restricted 702,988 789,260 717,394 657,228
Unrestricted (1,562,716) (1,467,534) (1,827,994) (1,260,928)
Total Net Position $ 5,643,706 $ 5,779,211 $ 6,513,611 $ 6,044,218

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Operating Income (Loss)

Tenant Revenues $ 722572 § 771,370 $ 793,379 $ 793,735
Other Revenues 146,003 118,887 132,114 154,798
Depreciation Expense (402,380) (461,596) (503,817) (522,156)
Other Operating Expenses (754,564) (602,402) (879,094) (815,691)
Total Operating Income (Loss) (288,369) (173,741) (457,418) (389,314)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

Investment Income 1,990 3,349 2,824 2,259
Interest Expense (92,661) (239,016) (383,830) (344,862)
Capital Contributions/(Distributions) - - 12,487 -
Change in Net Position (379,040) (409,408) (825,937) (731,917)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 6,030,912 6,189,554 7,339,548 6,776,135
Prior Period Adjustment (8,166) (935) - -
Net Position - Beginning Restated 6,022,746 6,188,619 7,339,548 6,776,135
Net Position - End of Year $ 5,643,706 $ 5,779,211 $ 6,513,611 $ 6,044,218
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Renew

Sals'is:a" Y:":’?:]a 2500 CrtG  Tacoma
Housing TOTALS
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Assets

Current Assets $ 203,443 $ 163,967 $ - $ 1,069,966 $ 2,787,461

Restricted Assets 981,804 1,070,209 - 4,661,419 11,165,122

Capital Assets 14,330,643 21,268,157 13,523,224 59,995,041 175,479,180

Other Assets 101,987 96,481 - 73,084 571,761
Total Assets 15,617,877 22,598,814 13,523,224 65,799,510 190,003,524
Liabilities

Current Liabilties 103,124 132,845 10,367,095 5,850,682 17,297,708

Current Due to Housing Authority 118,786 57,707 1,331,694 669,595 2,622,561

Noncurrent Due to Housing Authority 5,214,127 10,278,063 663,568 59,706,760 116,238,925

Other Noncurrent Liabilities 2,950,560 3,328,888 960,867 7,486 9,109,801
Total Liabilities 8,386,597 13,797,503 13,323,224 66,234,523 145,268,995
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,549,014 7,760,038 200,000 1,422,173 50,952,759

Restricted 954,910 1,047,702 - 4,556,848 10,847,001

Unrestricted (1,272,644) (6,429) - (6,414,034) (17,065,231)
Total Net Position $ 7,231,280 $8,801,311 $§ 200,000 $ (435,013) $44,734,529

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Operating Income (Loss)

Tenant Revenues $ 809,005 $ 489,868 $ - $2,975,032 $ 8,389,076
Other Revenues 157,084 280,782 - 100 1,226,528
Depreciation Expense (545,190) (684,207) - (510,667) (4,253,843)
Other Operating Expenses (684,975) (514,236) - (2,317,371) (7,713,318)
Total Operating Income (Loss) (264,076) (427,793) - 147,094 (2,351,557)

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)

Investment Income 3,775 2,253 - 5,405 27,059
Interest Expense (455,044) (228,836) - (1,027,612) (2,992,664)
Capital Contributions/(Distributions) - - 200,000 440,100 652,587
Change in Net Position (715,345) (654,376) 200,000 (435,013) (4,664,575)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 7,940,836 9,454,477 - - 49,398,156
Prior Period Adjustment 5,789 1,210 - - 948
Net Position - Beginning Restated 7,946,625 9,455,687 - - 49,399,104
Net Position - End of Year $ 7,231,280 $ 8,801,311 $ 200,000 $ (435,013) $44,734,529
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Blended Component Unit

The Housing Authority created the Tacoma Housing Development Group (THDG) blended component unit
to facilitate non-profit (501(c)(3)) operations in support of the Housing Authority’s development of safe and
affordable low-income housing. The Housing Authority routinely uses THDG as the initial limited partner
when it sets up new tax credit partnerships before the investor partner/member replaces THDG in these
entities that end up one of the discretely presented component units. THDG also is often used by the
Housing Authority to account for small contributions and related expenses in support of low-income tenants.

Financial information is provided for the Housing Authority’s blended component unit (THDG) in the
following condensed financial statements:
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

THDG

Assets
Current Assets
Receivable from Housing Authority 149,323
Other Current Assets 202,236
Total Current Assets 351,559

Capital Assets -
Other Assets -
Total Assets 351,559
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Payable to Housing Authority -
Other Current Liabilities -
Total Current Liabilities -

Long-Term Liabilities -
Total Liabilities -

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets -
Restricted -
Unrestricted 351,559
Total Net Position 351,559

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating Revenue

Contributions & Donations 52,000
Other Revenues 9,984
Total Operating Revenue 61,984
Operating Expenses
Administration 1,124
Tenant Senices 2,100
Contracted Senices 130
Other Operating Expenses -
Total Operating Expenses 3,354
Operating Income/(Loss) 58,630
Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses)
Investment Income 556
Total Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses) 556
Transfers from Housing Authority 1,110
Change in Net Position 60,296
Beginning Net Position 291,263
Ending Net Position 351,559

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities 48,646
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 1,110
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and Related Financing -
Activities
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Investing Activities 556
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 50,312
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalent Balance 151,924
Ending Cash and Cash Equivalent Balance 202,236
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NOTE 13 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As described in the notes above (Note 1 and Note 12), the Housing Authority entered into agreements with
its discretely presented component units and investors who are taking advantage of the federal tax credit
program that provides tax incentives for investing in low-income housing. The Housing Authority is allocated
about .01% of all profits, losses, and tax credits pursuant to the terms of the partnership or operating
agreements, with the remainder allocated to the investor partner/member.

Under the agreements with the LP/LLLP/LLC the Housing Authority has leased land to the partnerships
and assisted with financing the properties constructed or rehabilitated. To assist with financing the
properties the Housing Authority has provided construction loans from its own resources; lines of credit
secured by the Housing Authority; and federal, state, and local grants. Construction loans are primarily
retired using proceeds from the sale of the Low Income Housing Tax Credits to the investor
partner/member, usually within two to three years of the partnership’s inception.

Most resources provided by the Housing Authority for these construction and rehabilitation costs are
provided to the properties in the form of loans. These loans are accounted for as notes receivable from the
partnerships in the Housing Authority’s financial statements. A summary of the Housing Authority’s long-
term debt is presented in Note 9. A summary of the notes receivable from the partnerships is presented in
Note 7.

Details of related party transactions for these discretely presented component units by property that are not
listed in other note disclosures above follows:

Hillside Terrace Phase |, LP

Regulatory and Operating (R&0O) Agreement

On December 18, 2002 the partnership entered into an R&O Agreement with the Housing Authority.
Pursuant to the R&O Agreement all 21 of the property’s residential units shall be maintained and operated
continuously as public housing units in conformity with applicable public housing requirements. The
Housing Authority is required to make operating subsidy payments to the property up to the amount it
receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain in compliance with the applicable public
housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the partnership received operating subsidy
of $56,760 from the Housing Authority.

Operating Deficits

On December 18, 2002 the partnership entered into an Agreement Regarding Financial Obligations with
the Housing Authority. Pursuant to this agreement the Housing Authority’s obligations to advance funds to
or for the benefit of the partnership is limited to $250,000. However, in the event that obligations would
require a further advance of funds to the partnership and the Housing Authority does not voluntarily advance
funds to satisfy the obligations, the Special Limited Partner would have the right to remove and replace the
General Partner (the Housing Authority) in accordance with the provisions of the partnership agreement.
As of December 31, 2016 the Housing Authority had advanced $299,192 to the partnership of which $0
was to be paid back to the Housing Authority from available cash flows in 2017.

Hillside Terrace Phase I, LP

R&O Agreement
On March 4™, 2003 the partnership entered into an R&0O Agreement with the Housing Authority. Pursuant

to the R&O Agreement 12 of the 25 residential units are obligated to be maintained and operated as public
housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing requirements outlined in the agreement.
The Housing Authority is required to make operating subsidy payments to the property up to the amount it
receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain in compliance with the applicable public
housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the partnership received operating subsidy
of $31,836 from the Housing Authority.
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Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2003 the partnership entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance, which was extended for ten years in 2013. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority
will make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for 8 units. In addition, the Housing Authority
houses tenants from its tenant-based Section 8 program in the remaining 5 units providing additional rental
assistance payments. The rental assistance payments are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue in the
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For the year ended
December 31, 2016 the partnership received rental assistance payments of $64,347 from the Housing
Authority.

Operating Deficits

On December 18, 2002 the partnership entered into an Agreement Regarding Financial Obligations with
the Housing Authority. Pursuant to this agreement the Housing Authority’s obligations to advance funds to
or for the benefit of the partnership is limited to $400,000. However, in the event that obligations would
require a further advance of funds to the partnership and the Housing Authority does not voluntarily advance
funds to satisfy the obligations, the Special Limited Partner would have the right to remove and replace the
General Partner (the Housing Authority) in accordance with the provisions of the partnership agreement.
As of December 31, 2016 the Housing Authority had advanced $106,541 to the partnership of which nothing
was to be paid back to the Housing Authority from available cash flows in 2017.

Hillside Terrace 1500 LP

R&O Agreement
On May 5™, 2005 the partnership entered into an R&0O Agreement with the Housing Authority. Pursuant to

the R&O Agreement 4 of the 16 residential units are required to be maintained and operated as public
housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing requirements outlined in the agreement.
The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy payments to the property up to the amount
it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain in compliance with the applicable public
housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the partnership received operating subsidy
of $15,675 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2005 the partnership entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance, which was extended for ten years in 2015. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority
will make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for 4 units. In addition, the Housing Authority
houses tenants from its tenant-based Section 8 program in the remaining 8 units providing additional rental
assistance payments. The rental assistance payments are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue in the
accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For the year ended
December 31, 2016 the partnership received rental assistance payments of $63,274 from the Housing
Authority.

Operating Deficits

On May 5", 2005 the partnership entered into the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership
with the Housing Authority. Pursuant to this agreement the Housing Authority is required to advance funds
to cover operating deficits. As of December 31, 2016 the Housing Authority had advanced $128,347 to the
partnership of which nothing was to be paid back to the Housing Authority from available cash flows in
2017.

Salishan One LLC

R&O Agreement
On January 13", 2005 the limited liability company (“‘company”) entered into an R&0O Agreement with the

Housing Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement 55 of the 90 residential units are required to be
maintained and operated as public housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing
requirements outlined in the agreement. The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy
payments to the property up to the amount it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain
in compliance with the applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the
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company received operating subsidy of $131,158 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2005 the company entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance, which was extended for ten years in 2015. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority
will make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for 35 units. The rental assistance payments
are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the company received rental assistance
payments of $402,889 from the Housing Authority.

Salishan Two LLC

R&O Agreement
On January 13™, 2005 the limited liability company (“‘company”) entered into an R&0O Agreement with the

Housing Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement 55 of the 90 residential units are required to be
maintained and operated as public housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing
requirements outlined in the agreement. The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy
payments to the property up to the amount it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain
in compliance with the applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the
company received operating subsidy of $146,002 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2005 the company entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance, which was extended for ten years in 2015. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority
will make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for 34 units. The rental assistance payments
are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the company received rental assistance
payments of $387,076 from the Housing Authority.

Salishan Three LLC

R&O Agreement

On November 2", 2005 the limited liability company (“company”) entered into an R&0O Agreement with the
Housing Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement 45 of the 90 residential units are required to be
maintained and operated as public housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing
requirements outlined in the agreement. The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy
payments to the property up to the amount it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain
in compliance with the applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the
company received operating subsidy of $118,885 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2006 the company entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance, which was extended for ten years in 2016. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority
will make rental assistance payments on behalf of residents for 45 units. The rental assistance payments
are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the company received rental assistance
payments of $488,138 from the Housing Authority.

Salishan Four LLC

R&O Agreement
On June 28", 2007 the limited liability company (“‘company”) entered into an R&0O Agreement with the

Housing Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement 45 of the 90 residential units are required to be
maintained and operated as public housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing
requirements outlined in the agreement. The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy
payments to the property up to the amount it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain
in compliance with the applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the
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company received operating subsidy of $132,113 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2008 the company entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority will make rental assistance payments on
behalf of residents for 45 units. The rental assistance payments are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue
in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For the year ended
December 31, 2016 the company received rental assistance payments of $464,467 from the Housing
Authority.

Salishan Five LLC

R&O Agreement
On June 26%, 2008 the limited liability company (“‘company”) entered into an R&0O Agreement with the

Housing Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement 45 of the 90 residential units are required to be
maintained and operated as public housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing
requirements outlined in the agreement. The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy
payments to the property up to the amount it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain
in compliance with the applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the
company received operating subsidy of $154,797 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2009 the company entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority will make rental assistance payments on
behalf of residents for 45 units. The rental assistance payments are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue
in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For the year ended
December 31, 2016 the company received rental assistance payments of $471,893 from the Housing
Authority.

Operating Deficits

On June 1%, 2008 the company entered into the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement with the
Housing Authority. Pursuant to this agreement the Housing Authority is required to advance funds to cover
operating deficits up to $850,000. As of December 31, 2016 the Housing Authority had advanced $63,000
to the company of which nothing was to be paid back to the Housing Authority from available cash flows in
2017.

Salishan Six LLC

R&O Agreement

On October 15, 2008 the limited liability company (“‘company”) entered into an R&0O Agreement with the
Housing Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement 45 of the 90 residential units are required to be
maintained and operated as public housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing
requirements outlined in the agreement. The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy
payments to the property up to the amount it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain
in compliance with the applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the
company received operating subsidy of $154,442 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2009 the company entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority will make rental assistance payments on
behalf of residents for 44 units. The rental assistance payments are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue
in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For the year ended
December 31, 2016 the company received rental assistance payments of $544,171 from the Housing
Authority.
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2500 Yakima LLLP (DBA Bay Terrace | Apartments)

R&O Agreement
On January 15, 2015 the limited liability limited partnership (“partnership”) entered into an R&O Agreement

with the Housing Authority. Pursuant to the R&O Agreement 26 of the 70 residential units are required to
be maintained and operated as public housing units in accordance with the applicable public housing
requirements outlined in the agreement. The Housing Authority is obligated to make operating subsidy
payments to the property up to the amount it receives from HUD for this property, provided the units remain
in compliance with the applicable public housing requirements. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the
partnership received operating subsidy of $90,810 from the Housing Authority.

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2014 the partnership entered into a ten-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-based
assistance. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority will make rental assistance payments on
behalf of residents for 20 units. The rental assistance payments are included in Net Tenant Rental Revenue
in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For the year ended
December 31, 2016 the partnership received rental assistance payments of $187,046 from the Housing
Authority.

Rental Subsidy Contributions

On January 20", 2015 the partnership entered into the first amendment to the first amended and restated
agreement of limited partnership with the Housing Authority. Pursuant to this agreement the Housing
Authority will make Rental Subsidy Contributions to the 26 public housing units originally intended to receive
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments in an amount equal to the difference between the projected
Section 8 rents, the rent collected, and operating subsidy received for these units. For the year ended
December 31, 2016 the partnership received rental subsidy contributions of $164,475 from the Housing
Authority.

Development Services Agreement

In 2013 the partnership entered into a development services agreement with the Housing Authority. The
agreement provides for a developer fee of $2,078,243, which was scheduled to be earned and paid in
phases. Of the total developer fee, $1,518,970 was designated to be paid from the capital contributions of
the limited (investor) partner and $559,273 from cash flow of the property, as defined in the partnership
agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2016 the partnership paid the Housing Authority $153,713
in developer fees. The Housing Authority is scheduled to receive $24,126 from the partnership in 2017. Any
unpaid deferred developer fee shall be paid in full no later than December 31, 2028. As of December 31,
2016 the outstanding balance on the developer fee was $315,816.

2500 Court G LLLP (DBA Bay Terrace Il Apartments)

Development Services Agreement

In 2016 the partnership entered into a development services agreement with the Housing Authority. The
agreement provides for a developer fee of $1,600,000, scheduled to be earned and paid in phases. Of the
total developer fee, $915,577 was designated to be paid from the capital contributions of the limited
(investor) partner and $684,423 from cash flow of the property, as defined in the partnership agreement.
For the year ended December 31, 2016 the Housing Authority earned $640,000 in developer fees none of
which was paid as of December 31, 2016.

Renew Tacoma Housing LLLP

Project-based Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) Contract

In 2016 the partnership entered into a twenty-year HAP Contract with the Housing Authority for project-
based assistance. Pursuant to the HAP Contract the Housing Authority will make rental assistance
payments on behalf of residents for 456 units. The rental assistance payments are included in Net Tenant
Rental Revenue in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. For
the year ended December 31, 2016 the company received rental assistance payments of $2,125,918 from
the Housing Authority.
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Development Services Agreement

In 2016 the partnership entered into a development services agreement with the Housing Authority. The
agreement provides for a developer fee of $10,000,000, scheduled to be earned and paid in phases. 40%
was earned at the commencement of the rehabilitation of the project and 60% is earned on a pro-rata basis
as each building in the project is placed in service. As of December 31, 2016 3 apartment complexes were
placed in service and $6,592,784 of the developer fee was earned. Of the amount earned, $2,000,000 was
paid in 2016 from the capital contributions of the limited partner and the remainder was payable from limited
partner contributions or net cash flow in future years.

NOTE 14 — CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION

The Housing Authority has recorded in its financial statements all material liabilities. There are no material
contingent liabilities to record. In the opinion of management, the Housing Authority’s insurance policies
are adequate to pay all known or pending material claims.

The Housing Authority participates in a number of federal assisted programs. These grants are subject to
audit by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement to
grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. The Housing Authority’s
management believes that such disallowance, if any, would be immaterial.

NOTE 15 — SPECIAL ITEM

In 2013 the Housing Authority submitted to HUD an application to convert all of its housing units that were
funded under the public housing program to assistance under long-term, project-based Section 8 rental
assistance contracts, pursuant to the guidelines of the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program
authorized by the Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act of 2012.

On April 19, 2016 the Housing Authority closed on the first phase of the RAD conversion of its public housing
units. Under this phase nine of the Housing Authority’s public housing properties — 456 units — were sold to
the Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP, a partnership formed by the Housing Authority as General Partner and
RBC-Tacoma Portfolio, LLC as Limited Partner to take advantage of the Low Income Housing Tax Credit
(LIHTC) program authorized under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.

This closing included the sale of the nine properties to the Renew Tacoma Housing, LLLP, and the recording
of a gain on the sale that the Housing Authority recognized as a result of this sale that amounted to
$18,359,370. This gain is considered unusual in nature and therefore was presented as a special item in
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

NOTE 16 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Housing Authority is a member of the Housing Authorities Risk Retention Pool (HARRP). Utilizing
Chapter 48.62 RCW (self-insurance regulation) and Chapter 39.34 RCW (Interlocal Cooperation Act), fifty-
five public housing authorities in the states of Washington, Oregon and California originally formed HARRP
in March 1987. HARRP was created for the purposes of providing a pooling mechanism for jointly
purchasing insurance, jointly self-insuring, and/or jointly contracting for risk management services. HARRP
currently has a total of eighty-six members in the states of Washington, Oregon, Nevada and California.
Thirty-five of the eighty-seven members are Washington public housing entities.

New members originally contract for a three year term and thereafter automatically renew on an annual
basis. Members may quit (after completion of the three year commitment) upon giving notice to HARRP
prior to their renewal date. HARRP can terminate the members after giving a sixty (60) day notice prior to
the renewal date. Termination does not relieve a former member from its unresolved losses incurred during
membership.

HARRP is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of representatives from nine member PHAs. The
Board meets once each quarter to provide policy direction to the staff. HARRP provides property loss,
general liability, errors and omissions, fidelity and crime insurance, and business automobile insurance.
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Pool underwriting and rate-setting policies have been established by the pool executive board after
consultation with actuaries. Pool members are subject to supplemental assessment in the event of
deficiencies. If the assets of the pool were to be exhausted, members would be responsible for the pool’s
liabilities. The allocation of the liabilities would be determined by the executive board. A copy of their
financial statements may be acquired at 7111 NE 179" Street, Vancouver, WA 98686-1888 or at HARRP’s
website at www.harrp.com.

HARRP provides loss control services, claim investigation and adjusting, litigation management and
defense with in-house staff and retained third party contractors.

HARRRP is fully funded by member assessments that are adjusted annually by the HARRP Board on the
basis of independent actuarial studies. These assessments cover loss, loss adjustment expenses,
reinsurance and other administrative expenses. HARRP does not have the right to assess the membership
for any shortfall in its funding. Such shortfalls are made up through future rate adjustments.

HARRP General Liability coverage is on an occurrence basis without member deductibles. Automobile
Liability coverage is also on an occurrence basis with deductibles of $250 for comprehensive and $500 for
Collision. Errors & Omissions coverage (which includes Employment Practices Liability) is issued on an
occurrence basis, and the members are responsible for 10% of the incurred costs of the claims. The
Property coverage provided by HARRP is on a replacement cost basis with the Housing Authority’s
deductible of $2,500. The Housing Authority’s fidelity coverage offered by HARRP has a limit of $1,000,000
for employee dishonesty and forgery or alteration and $100,000 for theft. The deductible for the fidelity
coverage is $1,000.

HARRP provides coverage limits for General Liability, Errors & Omissions and Property of $2,000,000 per
occurrence. HARRP provides the first million and Munich reinsures the second million dollars. The coverage
limit for Automobile Liability is $2,000,000.

For property coverage, HARRP retains $2,000,000 and reinsurance from Munich Reinsurance Company
for a combined total per member of $45,000,000. Property coverage includes Equipment Breakdown
Insurance through Hartford Steam and Boiler Insurance, a Munich Reinsurance owned company. The
HARRP Board of Directors determines the limits and coverage terms, at its sole discretion.

Claim settlements did not exceed coverage in any of the past three years.

NOTE 17 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In 2013 the Housing Authority submitted to HUD an application to convert all of its housing units and those
of its discretely presented component units that are funded under the public housing program to assistance
under long-term, project-based Section 8 rental assistance contracts, pursuant to guidelines of the Rental
Assistance Demonstration (RAD) authorized by the Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations
Act of 2012. On February 27, 2015 HUD approved the Housing Authority’s request for a complete Portfolio
Award and awarded individual Commitments to enter into a Housing Assistance Payment Contract
(CHAPSs) for the public housing units in the following discretely presented component units properties:
Hillside Terrace |, Hillside Terrace Il, Hillside Terrace 1500 Block, Salishan One, Salishan Two, Salishan
Three, Salishan Four, Salishan Five, Salishan Six, and 2500 Yakima LLLP. HUD also allowed for disposal
by sale of the 34 unit Scattered Sites public housing property.

The Housing Authority is expected to close on the RAD conversion of 2500 Yakima LLLP by the end of
May 2017 and possibly close on additional RAD conversions during 2017.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
PERS Plan 1
As of June 30, 2016
Last 10 Fiscal Years™

2016 2015 2014

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.061051% 0.061609% 0.058165%
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 3,278,726 $ 3,222,724 $ 2,930,089
Employer's covered employee payroll $ 7,245629 $ 6,930,277 $ 6,360,228
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of covered employee payroll 45.25% 46.50% 46.07%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension

liability 57.03% 59.10% 61.19%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate information for 10 years. However, until a full 10 years of information is

available, information is presented for those years for which information is available.
Notes to the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
NOTE 1 - Changes of Benefit Terms

There were no changes in the benefit terms for the Pension Plan.

NOTE 2 - Changes in Assumptions

No significant changes in assumptions were made. Demographic assumptions were updated,
consistent with the changes from the 2007-2012 Experience Study Report, as identified in the

notes to the 2016 Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
PERS Plan 2/3
As of June 30, 2016
Last 10 Fiscal Years™

2016 2015 2014

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.075470% 0.076922% 0.072366%
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 3,799,855 $ 2,748,467 $ 1,462,778
Employer's covered employee payroll $ 7,139,040 $ 6,930,277 $ 6,360,228
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of covered employee payroll 53.23% 39.66% 23.00%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension

liability 85.82% 89.20% 93.29%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate information for 10 years. Howevwer, until a full 10 years of information is

available, information is presented for those years for which information is available.
Notes to the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
NOTE 1 - Changes of Benefit Terms

There were no changes in the benefit terms for the Pension Plan.

NOTE 2 - Changes in Assumptions

No significant changes in assumptions were made. Demographic assumptions were updated,
consistent with the changes from the 2007-2012 Experience Study Report, as identified in the

notes to the 2016 Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA
Schedule of Employer Contributions
PERS Plan 1
As of December 31, 2016
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2016 2015 2014
Statutorily or contractually required contributions $ 374,729 $ 314,161 $ 275,605
Contributions in relation to the statutorily or contractually
required contributions (374,729) (314,161) (275,605)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ -
Cowvered employer payroll $ 7,660,400 $ 7,061,251 $ 6,707,388
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 4.89% 4.45% 4.11%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate information for 10 years. However, until a full 10 years of information is
available, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

Notes to the Schedule of Employer Contributions

NOTE 1 - Changes of Benefit Terms

There were no changes in the benefit terms for the Pension Plan.

NOTE 2 - Changes in Assumptions

No significant changes in assumptions were made. Demographic assumptions were updated,

consistent with the changes from the 2007-2012 Experience Study Report, as identified in the
notes to the 2016 Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA
Schedule of Employer Contributions
PERS Plan 2/3
As of December 31, 2016
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

2016 2015 2014
Statutorily or contractually required contributions $ 473,656 $ 389,308 $ 330,072
Contributions in relation to the statutorily or contractually
required contributions (473,656) (389,308) (330,072)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ -
Cowvered employer payroll $ 7,552,217 $ 7,061,251 $ 6,707,388
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 6.27% 5.51% 4.92%

* This schedule is presented to illustrate information for 10 years. However, until a full 10 years of information is
available, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

Notes to the Schedule of Employer Contributions

NOTE 1 - Changes of Benefit Terms

There were no changes in the benefit terms for the Pension Plan.

NOTE 2 - Changes in Assumptions

No significant changes in assumptions were made. Demographic assumptions were updated,

consistent with the changes from the 2007-2012 Experience Study Report, as identified in the
notes to the 2016 Department of Retirement Systems (DRS) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Current Year Expenditures
Federal Agency From Pass- Debt
Federal Program CFDA From Through to -
Name/Pass-Through Other ID Number Pass- . Liability | Notes
Name Number Direct Total Sub-
Agency Name Through L Balance
Awards Recipients
Awards
CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
U.S. Department of Housing . . .
and Urban Development/ Community Development 14218  Family Seif Sufficiency 25,072
. Block Grant
Pass-through City of Tacoma Bay Terrace II, ADA Improv 100,000
Total CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 125,072 125,072
2014 TCRA Loan - Prairie ) 250,000
Oaks
U.S. Department of Housin _ZI_Z:;JSRA o B i 1,085,342
> DeP 9 HOME Investment 14.239 ) 3
and Urban Development/Pass- partnership Proaram 2008 TCRA Forgivable Loan - 1.000.000
through City of Tacoma pFrog Salishan IV T
2009 TCRA Forgivable Loan -
Salishan VI ) 500,000
Total CFDA 14.239 - - 2,815,342
Section 8 Project Based Cluster
. Section 8 Moderate
U.S. Department of Housing o\ -\ iation Single Room 14249  WAOO5SRO002 227,472
and Urban Development
Occupancy WAOQ05SRO003 160,130
Total Section 8 Project Based Cluster 387,602 387,602
U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development/Pass- ARRA-Tax Credit Salishan Seven (TC#09-02-
through Washington State  Assistance Program 14.258 TCAP) i i 11,880,335 3,4
Housing Finance Commission
U.S. Department of Housing  Resident Opportunity and 14.870
and Urban Development Supportive Services (ROSS) WADO05RPS055A014 118,547 118,547
Housing Voucher Cluster
WAOO05VO-NED 584,414
WAOO5AF-NED 61,073
U.S. Department of Housing Housing Choice Vouchers 14871 WAO005VO-FUP 316,920
and Urban Development WAOOSAF-FUP 28 992
WAOO5VO-VA 940,370
WAOO5AF-VA 106,067
Total Housing Voucher Cluster 2,037,836 2,037,836
14.HCV-WAQ005VO 32,930,879
14.HCV-WAOO5AF (VO) 2,969,017
14.0PS - WA005-00000115D 2,405,417
- WA005-00001615D
14.CFP-WA19P005501-12 1,040,716
U.S. Department of Housing  Moving To Work 14.881 14.CFP-WA19P005501-13 1,319,864
and Urban Development Demonstration Program 14.CEP-WA19P005501-14 1,590,067
14.CFP-WA19P005501-15 1,846,052
14.CFP-WA19P005501-16 660,824
14.CFP-WA19R005501-14 277,032
14.CFP-WA19R005502-14 469,729
14.CFP-WA19R005502-15 804,820
Total CFDA 14.881 46,314,417 46,314,417 1,003,721
U.S. Department of Housing  Family Self-Sufficiency 14.896 WAOO5ESH701A015 197,662 197,662
and Urban Development Program
Subtotal U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 125,072 $ 49,056,064 $ 49,181,136 $ 1,003,721 $ 14,695,677
B field A ; 00J95501-1 (Salishan) 14,717
U.S. Environmental Protection arrm(cjiwct,];aliu ézisse?;i:/e 66.818
Agency b ~00p 00J96101-1 (Hillside Terrace) 479
Agreements
Total CFDA 66.818 15,196 15,196
Subtotal U.S. Environmental Protection Agency $ - 15,196 $ 15,196 $ - $ -
TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE $ 125,072 $ 49,071,260 $ 49,196,332 $ 1,003,721 $ 14,695,677
the accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
e
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Housing Authority of the City of Tacoma

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

NOTE 1 - Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Financial Assistance is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the Housing Authority's financial statements. The Housing
Authority uses the full accrual basis of accounting.

NOTE 2 - Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program costs. Actual program costs, including the Housing
Authority's portion, may be more than shown.

NOTE 3 - Federal Loans

Outstanding loan balances with continuing compliance requirements, including those received and expended in prior years are listed under Debt Liability
Balance.

NOTE 4 - American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009
Expenditures for this program were funded by ARRA.

NOTE 5 - Indirect Cost Rate
The Housing Authority has not elected to use the 10% de minimis cost rate as covered in 2 CFR §200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs.
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(EMENT O, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

& %,

9 e , _

S Seattle Regional Office

A I" | & Seattle Federal Office Building

%ﬁ & Office of Public Housing Y !

Bt ey 909 First Avenue, Suite 360 R‘E. @*E*I W . *
Seattle, WA 98104-1000 VN RVEL
JUL 03 2017 L o5 207

Michael Mirra, Executive Director wm“‘&s‘fﬂ?“"
Tacoma Housing Authority , WA 96105
902 South “L"” Street www.tacomalivasi ¢ 2

Tacoma, WA 98405-4037
Dear Mr. Mirra:

Subject: Approval of Final Performance and Evaluation Reports (P&Es) and Actual
Modernization Cost Certificates (AMCCs) for Capital Fund and Replacement
Housing Factor Grants WA19P00550112, WA19P005501 13, WA19P005501 14,
WAI9R00550114, WA19R005550214, WA19P0055015, and WAT9R00550215

Our office reviewed the Final P&E Reports and the AMCCs (form HUD-53001) for
the subject grants. The AMCCs are approved for audit as submitted. A signed copy of each
AMCC is enclosed for your records.

Please ensure the costs for these grant are verified during your next regularly
scheduled fiscal audit. Also, please ask the auditor to include a copy of each AMCC as an
enclosure to the financial statement in the audit report. Following receipt of the audit report,
providing there are no audit findings affecting the AMCCs, we will furnish final approval
and provide copies for your records.

Should you have any questions regarding these AMCC please contact Carmen
Tennison, Facilities Management Specialist, by email at carmen.tennison @hud.gov or at
907-677-9898.

Sincerely,

Harlan Stewart
Director
Office of Public Housing

Enclosures:
7 Forms HUD-53001

www.hud.gov/washington.html
espanol.hud.gov
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Actual Modemization U.S. Department of Houslng OMB Approval Mo, 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)

. and Urban Development
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Program (CFP)
Public reporting burden for this colieclion of informalion Is estimaled lo average 2 hours per resy g the time for reviewing i NS, searching
exisling dala sources, galhering and mainlaining the dala needed, and completing and reviewing the colleclion of information. Send c is regarding this
burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of inf ian, including suggestions for reducing this burden, lo tha Reports Managamanl Officer,
Paperviark Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Offica of Information Technology, U.S. Department of Housing and Urhan Development, Washinglon,
D.C.20410-3600. This egency may nol condus or sponsor, and a person Is nol required to pond 1o, a collection af inf ion uniess thal collaction displays a

valid OM8 canlrol number,
Do not send this form to the above address.
This collection of information requires thal each Housing Autharity (HA) submit information to enable HUD 1o initiate the fiscal closeout process. The informalion

Wil be used by HUD lo defermine whether the modernization grant is ready to be audiled and closed oul. The information is essential for audit verfication and

fizcal close oul. Responses to the collection are required by requiation. The information requested does nol lend ilsell to confidentiality.
PHA Name: Modernization Project Num

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA WA19P00550112

The PHA hereby certifies to the Depariment of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. _That the total amount of Modernization Cost (herein called the "Actual Modarnization Cost') of the Modarnization Grant, is as shown below:

A.  Funds Approved $ 1,593,197.00
B. Funds Disbursed $ 1,593,197.00
C. Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) $1,5693,197.00
D.  Amount to be Recaptured (A-C) ; -

E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $

2. That all modernization work In connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;

3. That the entire Actual Modemization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers', contractors', or material-men's liens against such medernization
waork on file in any public office where the same should be filed In order to be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6, That for any years in which the grantee s subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one:

C A This grant wlil be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act,

LI B. This grant will not be included In the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

| hereby certify thal all the information stated herein, as well as any provided in the P t herawith, Is true and accurate.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and stalements. Conviction may resull in criminal andior civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.5.C. 3728, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (type or print clearly):
Michael Mirra, Executive Director
ﬂ Signature of Executive Director (or Authorized Designee): Date:

¢ M Ve b-27-\7

For HUD Use Only
The Cost Certificate is approved for audit (if box 7A Is marked):

Appraved for pudit (Director, Office of Pyblic Housing) Date: S A
X <X i’,’/%ﬁ?ﬁ\ \ C705. 20/ 7

The costs shown above agree with HUD verified costs (if box 7A or 7B Is marked):
Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing)

Date:

form HUD-53001 (10/95)
ref Handbooks 7485.1 £.3
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Actual Modernization U.5, Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)

% and Urban Development
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Program (CFP)
Public reporting burden for this cellection of inf is dio ge 2 hours per resp , incuding the time for reviewing instructions, hing
existing dala sources, gatharing and mainlal the dala needed, and ¢ leting and raviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this
burden estimate or any other aspec! of Ihis coection of inf ion, inch suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Manageman! Officer,
Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and (157), Office of Inf ion Technology, U.S. D it of Housing and Urban Development, Washington,

0.C.20410-3800, This agency may not conduct o spensor, and a person s nol requ’:d lo ;aspzmd to, & collection of information urless thal collection displays a
valid OMB control number.

Do not send this form to the above address.

This collection of inf ion requires that each Housing Authority (HA) submit infarmation to enable HUD to initiate the fiscal closeout process. The infarmation
will be used by HUD to delermine whather tha modernization grant is ready 1o be audited and closed oul. The inf jon is ial for audit verification and
fiscal close oul. Res; es 1o the colleclion are required by regutation. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.

PHA Name: Modemization Project Number:
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA WA19P00550113

The PHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. _That the total amount of Modernization Cost (herein called the “Actual Modernization Cost’) of the Modernization Grant, is as shown below:

A. Funds Approved $ 1,319,864.00

B. Funds Disbursed $ 1,319,864.00 o
C. Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) $ 1,319,864.00

D. Amountto be Recaptured (A-C) - $ -
E. Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabllities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers', contractors', ar material-men’s liens against such modernization
work on file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6. That for any years in which the grantee is subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one:
C A This grant will be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act,
U B. This grant will not be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

I heraby cenify that all the infermation slaled herein, as well as any information provided in the accomp .15 rue and
Warning: HUD will prosecuie false claims and staterments. Conviction may result In eriminal and/or civil penalties, (18 US.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.5.C. 3729, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (type or print clearly):
A Michael Mirra, Executive Director

Ignature of Executive Directar (or Authorized Designee): Date:
i) M . Wi it 747
z
For HUD Use Only

The Cost Certificate is approved for audit (if box 7A is marked):
Approved for Audit (Director, gfﬁce of Public Housing)

, 7 ™y 702, 207

.

The costs shown above agree with HUD verified costs (if box 7A or 7B is marked):

Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing) Date:

form HUD-53001 (10/96)
ref Handbooks 7485.1 &.3
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Actual Modemization U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2677-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)

. and Urban Development
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Program (CFP)
Fublic reporting burden hr 1his ¢ cl lo ge 2 hours per ing Ihe lime for reviewing inslruclions, searching
exisling data 3 g and mai q lhe dala needcd and compleling and reviewing the colleclion of information. Send comments regarding Lhis
burden eslimate or any o‘lher aspecl of this collection of i for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management Officer,

Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Offica of Infarmation Techno!ugy. U.S. Deparimenl of Housing and Urban Development, Washinglon,
D.C.20410-3600. This agency may nol conduch or sponsar, and a person is nol required Lo respond Lo, a collection of information unless thal collection displays a
vald OMB conlrol number.

Do not send this form to the above address.

This collection of informalion requires that each Housing Autharity (HA) submil information 1 enable HUD to initiate the fiscal cl 1 The inf i
will be used by HUD lo delerming whelher lhe modernizalion grant is ready 1o be audited and closed oul. The information is asscnllal for audil verilication and

fiscal close oul. Responses fo Ihe collection are required by regulation. The information requested does not lend ilself to ¢ 4
PHA Name: Modernizatl Projel:l Numb

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA WA19P00550114

The PHA, hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Davelopment as follows:

1. _That the total amount of Modemization Cost (herein called the “Actual Modernization Cosl') of the Modernization Grant, is as shown below.

A.  Funds Approved $ 1,590,067.00

T . 1'590‘06106 ....................... —

C. Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cost) ) o - $ 1,590,067.00 - o
D_Amounlmbsmcapmredm_c} i e — 5 M

E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $

2. Thal all modernization work in connection with the Modernization Grant has been completad;
3. That the entire Actual Modemization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers', contraclors', or material-men's liens against such modernization
work on file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time In which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6. Thal for any years in which the grantee is subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one:

[* A, This grant wlll be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act,

! B. This grant will not be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audil per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

I hereby certify thal all the information staled herein, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is lrue and accurale.
Warning: HUD will prosecute falss claims and stalements. Conviction may resull in criminal and/or civil penalties. {18 U.5.C. 1001, 1010, 1012 31 U.5.C. 3728, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (type or print clearly):
Michael Mirra, Executive Director

ﬁ ture of Executive Director {or Authorized Deslgnes): Date:

, 127702

For KUD Uie Only
The Cost Certificate Is approved for audit (if box 7A Is marked):

Appm\r d for Audit lDIral:tor ce of Publlc Housing) Date: 5 " 4
XV 22 i e
The costs shown above agree with HUD verified costs (if box 7A or 7B is marked):
Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing) Date:

X

form HUD-53001 (10/96}
ref Handboaks 7485.1 &.3
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Actual Modernization U.S. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)

¥ and Urban Development
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Program (CFP)
Public reporting burden for ihis colection of information is ] {J& 2 hours per rasg ihe time for reviewing instructions, sealdﬂng
exisling data sources, galrering and mainlaining the dala needed, and compleling and reviewing the collection of . Send g this

burden estimale or any other aspect of Ihis collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, 1o the Reports Managemen! Gfl'cer
Paperwark Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Office of Information Technology, U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development, Washmgl.cn,
D.C.20410-3600. This agercy may nol conduct or sponsor, and a person is nol required lo respongd 1o, a collection of informalion unless thal colleclion displays a
valid OMB conlrol number.

Do not send this form to the above address.

This collection of inf 1t (uires thal each Housing Authority (HA) submil information o enable HUD ko iniliate the fiscal closeout process. The infarmation
will be used by HUD lo determine whether the modernization granl i ready o be audited and closed oul, The is tial for audit verifi and
fiscal close oul. Responses to the colleclion are required by regulation. The infermalion requested does nol lend itsell lo conlidentiality.

PHA Name: Modernization Project Number:
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA WA19R00550114

The PHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. _That the total amounl of Modernization Cost (herein called the *Actual Modernization Cost’) of the Modernization Granl, is as shown below:

A. Funds Approved $ 2?? 032 00

B. Funds I:l.isiJl..lrsed _______ - $ 277,032.00 - o
:3 Funds Expended (Actual Modemization Cosi) s 27703200

D Armu-nt to be Recaptured (A- C) - %

E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) E

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modemization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid,

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers', contractors', or material-men’s liens against such modernization
waork on file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modemization work;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6. That for any years in which the grantee is subject lo the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one:
A. This grant will be included in the PHA’s next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act,
| B. This grant will not be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

I hereby certify that all the information stated harein, as well as any information provided in the th h, is true and accurate.

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statemenls. Conviction may resull in criiminal andfor civil penallies. (18 U.5.C. 1001, 1010, 1012: 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)
Name & Title of Authorlzed Signatory (type or print clearly):

Michael Mirra, Executive Director '
tnature of Executive D!reclomr Authorized Designee): Date:

g b 27,47

For HUD Us'e Only
The Cost Certificate Is approved for audit (if box TA Is marked):

Appm\md for Audit (Direc!or. of Public Houslng) Date:

X L T
The costs shown abovu agree with HUD verified costs (if box 7A or 7B Is marked):
Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing) Date:

X

form HUD-53001 (10/96)
ref Handbooks 7485.1 8.3
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Actual Modernization U.5. Department of Housing OMB Approval No, 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)
. and Urban Development
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Program (CFP)

Fublic reporting burden I'ur ihis cullecllon uf ion is esli ilo ge 2 hours per resp Iincluding the time for reviewing lns!rudnuns seaichlng
axisling dala . g g and g Ihe data needed, and compleling and reviewing the coltection of information. Send 9 g this
burden eslimale or any other aspecl of this mllect’nn of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management m‘:er
Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and (0157), Office of lnrnrmallun Technology, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washinglon,
D.C.20410-3600. This agency may not conduc! or sponsor, and a persen is not required to respond 1o, a collection of informalion unless Ihal collection displays a
wvalid OMB control number,

Do not send this form to the above address.

This colleclion of informalion raquires that each Housing Authority (HA) submil information lo enable HUD Io iniliate the fiscal closeoul process. The information
will bee used by HUD to determing whether the modernization grant is ready lo be audiled and closed oul. The information is essential for avdil verification and
fiscal close oul. Respanses lo the collection are required by requlation. The information requested does nol lend ilsell 1o confidentialily,

PHA Name: Modernization Project Number:

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA WA18R00550214

The PHA hereby certifies lo the Depariment of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. _That the total amount of Moderization Cost (herein called the "Actual Medernization Cost') of the Modernization Grant, is as shown below.

A, Funds Approved § 873,158,00
B ........ ;;;:Dishursed o " $ 873,158.00 o
c Funds Expended (Actual Modeﬂ;zat:on Cost) $ 8?3.- 1-58.00 -
D. Amount to be Recaptured {A—C} ..... $ - o

E. Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) N $

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;

3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid,

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics’, laborers', contractors’, or material-men's liens against such modernization
wark on file in any public office where the same should be filed In order to be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6. That for any years in which the grantee is subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.5.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the granlee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one: 2
. A. Tnis grantwill be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act,
.. B. This grant will not be Included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

1| hereby certify that all the information stated hereln, as well as any information provided in Lhe ith, is lrwe end
YWarning: HUD will prosecute lalse claims and stalemants. Conviclion may result in criminal andfer civil penalties. (18 U.S.C_ 1001, 1010, 1012 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (type or print clearly):
Michael Mirra, Executive Director

naturg of E tive Director {or Authorized Deslgnes): Date:
% ﬂ ; bkww b2T.49

For HU[j.Uée Only
The Cost Certificate is approved for audit (f box 7A is marked):

Approved.for Audit (Director, Office of Public Housing)
X
g 7

=+

Date: y —- X
[ﬂ ; fﬁ; L0/ ;E
The costs shown above agree with HUD verified costs (if box 7A or 7B Is marked):
Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing) \ Date:

form HUD-53001 (10/96)
refl Hardbooks 74851 §.3
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Actual Modernization U.5. Department of Housing OMB Approval No. 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)
¥ and Urban Development
Cost Certificate Office of Public and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Program (CFP)

Public reporting burden for this coliection of jon is esl to ge 2 hours per resp Including the lime for reviewing instructions, searching
exisfing data sources, gathering and malnlaining the dala nesded, and complating and reviewing the coliection of information. Send c Is regarding this
burden eslimale or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, 1o the Reparls Management Officer,
Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Office of Information Technology, U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development, Washinglon,
D.C.20410-3600, This agency may nol conduct or sponsor, and a person Is nol required lo respond 1o, a collection of information unless Ihat collection displays a
valid OMB control number.

Do not send this form to the above address.

This eollection of inf i quires that each Housing Authority (HA) submit information to enable HUD 1o inilisle the fiscal closeout process. The information
will be used by HUD to delermine whether the modernization grant is ready lo be audited and closed oul. The ionis ial for audit and
fscal close out. Responses lo the collection are required by requlation. The In juested does not lend iself to confidentislity.
PHA Name: Modernization Project Number:

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA WA19P00550115

The PHA hereby certifles to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. _That the total amount of Modemization Cost (herein called the "Actual Modernization Cost’) of the Modemization Grant, is as shown below:

A, Funds Approved $ 1,846,052.00
B. Funds_DIsbursed = 5 1,846,052.00
C. Funds Expended (Actual Medemization Cost) $ 1,846,052.00
D. Amount to be Recaptured (A-C) s )
E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabilities therefor Incurred by the PHA have been fully pald;

4, That there are no undischarged mechanics’, laborers', contractors’, or material-men's liens against such modernization
work on file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6. That for any years in which the grantee is subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Acl, 31 U.5.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit In compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one:
[ A This grant will be Included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.
LI B. This grant will not be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

| hereby certify that all the infermation stated herein, as well s any inf ided in the paniment herewith, Is rue and accurate.
Warning: HUD wil prosecute false claims and stalements. Conviction may result in eriminal andfer civil penalties. (18 US.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.5.C. 3729, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (typa or print clearly):

Michael Mirra, Executive Director
mmrs of Executive Director (or Authorized Designes): Date:

M. Mons o 217
For HUD 5,-;; Only

The Cost Certlficate s approved for audit (if box 7A Is marked):
Approvedfor Audit (Director, Office of Public Housing)

Date:
X (7 Z 47 ™p702.21/2-
The costs shown above agree with HUD verified costs (if box 7A or 7B is marked):
Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing)

Date:

form HUD-53001 (10/96)
ref Handbooks 7485.1 &.3
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U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development
Offica of Public and Indian Housing

Actual Modemization OMB Approval No, 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)

Cost Certificate

Capital Fund Program (CFP)

Publlc reporting burden for this collection of information Is o ge 2 hours per resp g the time for revigwing struct ing
existing data sources, gathering and mainlaining the dala needed, and completing and ing the collection of inf tion. Send s regarding this
burden eslimate or any olher aspect of this colleclion of lon, including ions for reducing this burden, to the Reports Management Otficer,

Paperwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Office of Information Technology, U.S. Depariment of Housing and Urban Development, Washinglon,
D.C.20410-3800. This agency may nol condust of sponsor, and a parson is nol required 1o respond lo, a collection of informalion unless thal collection displays a
valid OMB conlrol number.

Do not send this form to the above address.

This callection of informalion requires thal each Housing Authorily (HA) submit information lo enable HUD lo infiate the fiscal closeoul process. Tha informalion
will be used by HUD lo ine whelher Ihe modernization grant is ready 1o be audiled and clused oul. The information is essential for audit verification and
fiscal close oul. Responses 1o the collection are required by regulation. The information requesled does not land itself to confidentiality.

PHA Name: Modernization Project Number:

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TACOMA WA19R00550215

The PHA hereby certilies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. That the total amount of Modemization Cast (herein called the *Actual Modarnization Cost") of the Modernization Granl, is as shawn below.

A.  Funds Approved $ 804,820.00

T G 5 S r
ﬁnd;;p;ndsd (Actu;l M;;demizalion Cost) 3 804.82(}00 -
D_ Amount o be ;{ecaptured (A=C) $ -

E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4, That there are no undischarged mechanics’, laborers', contractors’, or material-men’s liens against such modernization
work on file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modemization waork;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6. That for any years in which the grantee Is subject to the audil requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C.§7501 etseq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one;
™ A This grant will be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audil per the requirements of the Single Audit Act,
_ B. This grantwill not be Included in the PHA's nexl fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Acl.

T hereby certify that all the information stated hercin, 2s well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurale,
Warning: HUD will prosecine false claims and statemants. Conviclon may result in eriminal andlor civil penalties. (18 LLS.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 WU.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (type or print clearly):
| Michael Mirra, Executive Director

mtura of Executive Director (or Authorized Designee): Date:

M M,

e Sy A (e

For HUD Use Only

The Cost Certificate is approved for audit (if box 7A Is marked):

ﬁpprov?d for Audit (Director, ce of Public Housing) Date: .

X 2 HFO% 22/ 7
The costs shown above agree with HUD verifled costs (if box 7A or 7B Is marked):
Approved: (Director, Office of Public Housing) Date:

Washington State Auditor's Office

form HUD-53001 {10/86)
ref Handbooks 7485.1 6.3
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE

The State Auditor's Office is established in the state's Constitution and is part of the executive
branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the citizens of Washington and
serves four-year terms.

We work with our audit clients and citizens to achieve our vision of government that works for
citizens, by helping governments work better, cost less, deliver higher value, and earn greater
public trust.

In fulfilling our mission to hold state and local governments accountable for the use of public
resources, we also hold ourselves accountable by continually improving our audit quality and
operational efficiency and developing highly engaged and committed employees.

As an elected agency, the State Auditor's Office has the independence necessary to objectively
perform audits and investigations. Our audits are designed to comply with professional standards
as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state, and local laws.

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with state, federal and local laws on the
part of all local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of
higher education. In addition, we conduct performance audits of state agencies and local
governments as well as fraud, state whistleblower and citizen hotline investigations.

The results of our work are widely distributed through a variety of reports, which are available
on our website and through our free, electronic subscription service.

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously, and provide training and technical
assistance to governments, and have an extensive quality assurance program.

Contact information for the State Auditor’s Office

Public Records requests | PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov

Main telephone | (360) 902-0370

Toll-free Citizen Hotline | (866) 902-3900

Website | www.sa0.wa.gov
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http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/FraudProgram.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/Whistleblower.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/investigations/Pages/CitizenHotline.aspx
http://www.sao.wa.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://portal.sao.wa.gov/saoportal/Login.aspx
mailto:PublicRecords@sao.wa.gov
file:///C:/Users/cameronl/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/P7TI2Y9E/www.sao.wa.gov
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